

Project Manual Bid Packet and Specifications February 29, 2024

HVAC Services – All Buildings Bid Number 2264

PROJECT LOCATIONS

Various

Bid Submission Deadline:

March 21, 2024 at 1:30pm

Bid Opening:

March 21, 2024 at 1:45pm Northbrook Park District 545 Academy Drive Northbrook, IL 60062

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Advertisement to Bid	3
Invitation to Bid	4
Bidding Information, Contract Requirements & General Conditions	
Instructions to Bidders	5
Bidders Checklist	13
Service Schedule	14
General Information	15
Application and Certificate for Payment (AIA G702, 1992)	20
Contractor's Affidavit of Payment of Debts and Claims (AIA G706, 1994)	21
Notice of Award (Sample)	22
Notice to Proceed (Sample)	23
IDOL-Certified Transcript of Payroll	24
Prevailing Wage Supersedes Notice	26
Bid Form	27
Subcontractors and Suppliers List	31
Contractor Compliance and Certifications Attachment	32
Substance Abuse Prevention Program Certification	35
Affidavit of Experience	36
Required Bidder Information	37
Scope of Services	39
Specifications	
Schedule A	48
Schedule B	55
Exhibits	
Sample HVAC Services Agreement	Exhibit A

ADVERTISEMENT TO BID

The NORTHBROOK PARK DISTRICT does hereby invite sealed bids for <u>HVAC Services – All Buildings, Bid</u> #2264.

Sealed bids will be received until <u>March 21, 2024 at 1:30pm</u> by mail or delivered by hand to the <u>Bid</u> <u>Officer, Northbrook Park District, 545 Academy Drive, Northbrook, Illinois 60062</u>. Immediately thereafter, the bids will be opened and publicly read aloud on <u>March 21, 2024 at 1:45pm</u> in the Northbrook Park District's Conference Room at 545 Academy Drive, Northbrook, Illinois 60062. Each bid must be placed in an opaque, sealed envelope and must be clearly marked <u>Bid Officer-Northbrook Park District, HVAC Services – All Buildings, Bid #2264</u>.

The Northbrook Park District ("Owner" or "Park District") reserves the right to waive all technicalities, to accept or reject any or all bids, to accept only portions of a bid and reject the remainder. Owner will award the Contract to the lowest most responsible and responsive Bidder, as determined by Owner. In considering the Bidder's responsibility, the Owner may evaluate, among other factors, the ability of the Bidder to provide experienced labor sufficient in numbers to timely and properly complete the Work, the financial capability of the Bidder, and the performance of the Bidder on other projects.

Bids shall not include federal excise tax or state sales tax for materials to be incorporated in or totally consumed in the prosecution of the Work. A tax exemption certificate will be furnished by the Park District at the request of the Bidder. The Park District's tax exemption number shall only be used by the successful Bidder for the Work of this Project. After the bid opening, no bid may be withdrawn, and all bids shall remain firm for sixty (60) days.

The Work of this Project is subject to the *Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq.* A prevailing wage determination has been made by the Park District, which is the same as that determined by the Illinois Department of Labor for public works projects in Cook County. The Contract entered into for the Work will be drawn in compliance with said law, and proposals should be prepared accordingly and provide for payment of all laborers, workmen and mechanics needed to perform the Work at no less than the prevailing rate of wages (or the prevailing rate for legal holiday and overtime work) for each craft, type of worker or mechanic.

The Contractor(s) selected also will be required to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and executive orders, including but not limited to those pertaining to equal employment opportunity.

All bids must be accompanied by cashier's check or bid bond payable to the order of the Northbrook Park District for ten percent (10%) of the amount of the bid as provided in the Instructions to Bidders. No proposals or bids will be considered unless accompanied by such bond or check.

Those desiring to bid may obtain bidding information during normal business hours of 9am-5pm from **Kris Scharp** at 545 Academy Drive, Northbrook, Illinois 60062, by email: kscharp@nbparks.org or phone: **847-897-6114.** Project manuals are available at no charge at 545 Academy Drive or through our website at nbparks.org. The Northbrook Park District encourages minority business firms to submit bids.

Northbrook Park District Wendy Peterson, Purchasing

Dated: February 29, 2024

To appear in Daily Herald on February 29, 2024

INVITATION TO BID

Date: February 29, 2024

Re: HVAC Services - All Buildings, Bid #2264

Dear Bidder:

Sealed bids for HVAC Services – All Buildings, Bid #2264 will be received by the Northbrook Park District. Each bid must be placed in an opaque, sealed envelope and clearly marked Bid Officer-Northbrook Park District, HVAC Services – All Buildings, Bid #2264. The envelope shall be addressed and delivered to the Bid Officer-Northbrook Park District, 545 Academy Drive, Northbrook, Illinois 60062. Bids will be received until March 21, 2024 at 1:30pm, and immediately thereafter, the bids will be publicly opened and read aloud on March 21, 2024 at 1:45pm at 545 Academy Drive, Northbrook, Illinois. Bids submitted after the closing time will be rejected. No responsibility shall be attached to any person for premature opening of a bid not properly identified. Bid results will typically be available on our website at <a href="https://doi.org/10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.10.1001/nbp.1001/nb

The Northbrook Park District ("Owner" or "Park District") reserves the right to waive all technicalities, to accept or reject any or all bids, to accept only portions of a bid and reject the remainder. Owner will award the Contract to the lowest most responsible and responsive Bidder, as determined by Owner. In considering the Bidder's responsibility, the Owner may evaluate, among other factors, the ability of the Bidder to provide experienced labor sufficient in numbers to timely and properly complete the Work, the financial capability of the Bidder, and the performance of the Bidder on other projects.

Bids shall not include federal excise tax or state sales tax for materials to be incorporated in or totally consumed in the prosecution of the Work. A tax exemption certificate will be furnished by the Park District at the request of the Bidder. The Park District's tax exemption number shall be used only by the successful Bidder for the Work of this Project. After the bid opening, no bid may be withdrawn, and all bids shall remain firm for sixty (60) days.

The Work of this Project is subject to the *Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq.* A prevailing wage determination has been made by the Park District, which is the same as that determined by the Illinois Department of Labor for public works projects in Cook County. The Contract entered into for the Work will be drawn in compliance with said law, and proposals should be prepared accordingly and provide for payment of all laborers, workmen and mechanics needed to perform the Work at no less than the prevailing rate of wages (or the prevailing rate for legal holiday and overtime work) for each craft, type of worker or mechanic.

The Contractor(s) selected also will be required to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and executive orders, including but not limited to those pertaining to equal employment opportunity.

All bids must be accompanied by a cashier's check or bid bond, payable to the order of the Northbrook Park District for ten percent (10%) of the amount of the bid, as provided in the Instructions to Bidders. No proposals or bids will be considered unless accompanied by such bond or check.

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Date: February 29, 2024

Bid Request: HVAC Services – All Buildings

Bid Number: 2264

Sealed bids will be accepted until <u>March 21, 2024 at 1:30pm</u> and immediately thereafter publicly opened and read aloud on <u>March 21, 2024 at 1:45pm</u>. Bids arriving after this time will be rejected and will be returned unopened, including mailed bids, regardless of when postmarked. All Bidders are welcome to attend the bid opening. Bid results will typically be available on our website at <u>nbparks.org</u>, under Bids & RFPs, within 5-7 business days after bid opening.

I. Preparation and Submission of Bid Proposal

- a. It is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to see that his bid is received in proper time. No faxed or e-mail bid or modification of a bid will be considered. The Park District is not responsible for the premature opening of bids not marked as required. Any bid opened prematurely due to the failure of the Bidder to mark the envelope in accordance with these Bid Documents will be considered non-responsive. Bidders' prices are to include the delivery of all materials, including plant, equipment, supplies, tools, scaffolding, transportation, insurances, bonds, warranties, and all other items and facilities, and the performance of all labor and services necessary for the proper completion of the Work, except as may be otherwise expressly provided in the Contract Documents. Bids shall not include federal excise tax or state sales tax for materials to be incorporated in or totally consumed in the prosecution of the Work. A tax exemption certificate will be furnished by the Park District upon request of the Bidder.
- b. Bidder must acknowledge all Addenda received in the spaces provided on the Contractor Bid Form. By submitting a bid, Bidder indicates that all considerations issued by Addendum are incorporated in the bid.
- c. Attached to the Bid Form will be one or more certifications regarding the Bidder's compliance with applicable laws. <u>Failure of a Bidder to complete/submit a required certification shall be the basis for immediate rejection of that Bidder's bid</u>. The certification of the successful Bidder shall become a part of the Contract with the Park District.
- d. The Bidder shall submit his prices on the attached Contractor Bid Form. The Bid Form shall be executed properly, and all writing, including all signatures, shall be with blue or black ink.
 Failure to use the Bid Form provided could result in rejection of the bid.
- e. The Bidder shall specify in figures, in the places provided, a price for each of the separate items called for in the Bid Form.

II. Requirement of Bidders

- a. Bidders must be able to demonstrate that they: 1) have experience in performing and have successfully performed and are still actively engaged in performing work similar in kind and scope to the Work of the Project, and 2) are able to show that they have adequate laborers and materials to successfully complete the Work as indicated in the Bid Documents and within the time required by the Bid Documents. The Contractor shall not have been debarred or determined ineligible for public contracts by any governmental agency.
- b. The following information must be attached to the bid proposal. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of the Bidder. **See the REQUIRED BIDDER INFORMATION form.**
 - i. On a separate sheet, list all preventative maintenance and service repair projects your organization has in progress, giving the name of the project, project description, project address, owner and telephone number, architect and telephone number, contract amount, percent complete, and scheduled completion date.
 - ii. On a separate sheet, list all preventative maintenance and service repair projects your organization has completed in the past two years that are comparable in scope, giving the name of the project, project description, project address, owner and telephone number. Also provide the original contract amount, the final contract amount, the substantial and final completion dates provided for in the contract, and the actual dates of substantial and final completion. Where the final contract amount is materially greater than the contract amount included in the contract at the time of execution by both parties, provide an explanation of the reason(s) for the increase. Where the actual dates of substantial and/or final completion differ from those dates as included in the contract at time of execution by both parties, explain the reason for the delay in the substantial and/or final completion of the Work.
 - iii. On a separate sheet, list all administrative proceedings and litigation filed by or against Bidder in the past five (5) years, including the name and case number, name/jurisdiction of the court or administrative agency, and a summary of each claim/case, including current status and if no longer pending the disposition. The foregoing includes but is not limited to information regarding any proceedings and actions taken by any governmental agency to debar or disqualify the Bidder from bidding on public contracts, including the name of the agency initiating the proceeding/action, the nature of the proceeding/action, the claimed basis for the proceeding/action, and the current status or disposition of the proceeding/action.
 - iv. On a separate sheet, indicate all instances in which Bidder has been rejected for not being a responsible bidder, giving the name of the project, project description, project address, owner and telephone number, architect and telephone number, contract amount, and an explanation of the circumstances surrounding the rejection.
 - v. On a separate sheet, provide a list of all contracts to which you were a party and with respect to which you were declared to be in breach of one or more provisions, giving the type of contract, the project location where applicable, the names and addresses of the parties to the contract, the name of the party declaring the breach, the nature of

the claimed breach and current status or resolution of the claim. If it is a preventative maintenance and service repair contract, also provide the name, address and telephone number of the architect and, if applicable, the construction manager or owner's representative.

vi. Other required submittals include: Bid Proposal, Contractor's Compliance and Certification Attachment/Substance Abuse Prevention Program Certification. Failure of a Bidder to complete/submit these documents shall be the basis for immediate rejection of that Bidder's bid.

III. Examination of Site, Drawings and Specifications

- a. Each Bidder shall visit the site(s) of the proposed Work and fully acquaint himself with existing conditions and shall undertake such additional inquiry and investigation as he shall deem necessary so that he may fully understand the requirements, facilities, possible difficulties and restrictions attending the execution of the Work under the Contract. Bidder shall thoroughly examine and be familiar with all of the Bid Documents, including but not limited to the Drawings and the written Specifications. Any conflicts or discrepancies found between or among Bid Documents, including but not limited to the Drawings and written Specifications and the site conditions, or any errors, omissions or ambiguities in the Drawings or written Specifications shall be immediately reported to the Park District and the Architect and written clarification requested prior to submission of a bid.
- b. The failure or omission of any Bidder to obtain, receive or examine any form, instrument or information, to visit the Project site(s) and become knowledgeable with respect to conditions existing there, or to seek needed clarification shall in no way relieve any Bidder from any obligations with respect to his bid. By submitting a bid, the Bidder agrees, represents and warrants that he has undertaken such investigation as he deemed necessary, has examined the site(s) and the Bid Documents, has obtained all needed clarifications, and where the Bid Documents indicate in any part of the Work that a given result be produced, that the Bid Documents are adequate and the required result can be produced as indicated in the Specifications and Drawing(s). Once the award has been made, failure to have undertaken and completed the foregoing tasks shall not be cause to alter the original Contract or to request additional compensation.

IV. Acceptance or Rejection of Bids

- a. The Park District may accept the bid of, and award the Contract for the Work to, the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder, as determined by and in the sole discretion of the Park District.
- b. The Owner reserves the right to: (1) reject all bids; (2) reject only certain bids that are non-conforming or non-responsive to the bid requirements; (3) accept only a portion, part or specific items of Work of all and reject others, as the Owner shall in its sole discretion determine to be in its best interest; and/or (4) award the Contract to the responsible Bidder submitting the lowest bid responsive to the bidding requirements. No bid will be accepted from or Contract awarded to any person, firm or corporation that is in arrears or is in default to the Park District upon any debt or contract, or that is a defaulter, as surety or otherwise,

- upon any obligation to said Park District or that has failed to perform faithfully any previous contract with the Park District.
- c. In the event of a rejection of a portion, part or certain items of Work of all bids, the bid of each Bidder shall automatically be deemed reduced by the amount of such rejected part or item at the unit price or other cost designated therefore by that Bidder on its submitted Contractor Bid Form. The successful Bidder so selected may not refuse to enter into a Contract with the Owner on the basis that the Owner awarded a Contract for less than all portions or items of the Work specified in the Bid Documents. The Northbrook Park District Board of Park Commissioners reserves the right to waive any technicalities or irregularities and to disregard any informality on the bids and bidding when, in its opinion, the best interest of the Park District will be served by such actions and in accordance with applicable law.

V. Surety

- a. All bids must be accompanied by a bid bond or bank cashier's check, payable to the Northbrook Park District for ten percent (10%) of the amount of the bid and drawn on a responsive and responsible bank doing business in the United States. All bids not accompanied by a bid security, when required, will be rejected.
- b. The bid security of all except the three (3) lowest responsive and responsible Bidders will be returned after the decision to accept or reject bids by the Northbrook Park District Board of Park Commissioners. The bid security of the successful Bidder will be returned after acceptance by the Park District of an acceptable Performance Bond, Labor and Materials/Payment Bond, and a certificate of insurance naming the Northbrook Park District as the certificate holder and as additional insured, and the successful Bidder has executed and returned to the Park District the Contract for the Work presented by the Park District.
- c. Prior to beginning Work, the successful Bidder shall furnish a Performance Bond and Labor and Materials/Payment Bond in the amount of 110% of the Contract Sum, using a form similar to the AIA-A312-2010 form, or its current equivalent, or one acceptable to Owner, cosigned by a surety company licensed to conduct business in the state of Illinois and with at least an "A" rating and a financial rating of at least "X" in the latest edition of the Best Insurance Guide. Said bond shall guarantee the faithful performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract, the payment of all indebtedness incurred for labor and materials, and guarantee correction of Work for a period of one (1) year after Final Completion. The cost of each bond shall be included in the Contract Sum. The Bidder and all subcontractors shall name the Park District as an obligee on all bonds. Said bonds shall meet the requirements of the Illinois Public Construction Bond Act, 30 ILCS 550/0.01 et seq., and any further amendments thereto. Bidder shall include in his Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond such language as shall guarantee the faithful performance of the Prevailing Wage Act as required in these Bid Documents.
- d. The Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond will become a part of the Contract. The failure of the successful Bidder to enter into the Contract and supply the required bonds and evidence of insurance within ten (10) days after the Contract is presented for signature, or within such extended period as the Park District may grant, shall constitute a

default, and the Park District may either award the Contract to the next responsible Bidder or re-advertise for bids. In the event of a default, the Owner need not return the defaulting Bidder's bid surety and may charge against the defaulting Bidder for the full difference between the amount for the Bid and the amount for which a Contract for the Work is subsequently executed, irrespective of whether the amount thus due exceeds the amount of the defaulting Bidder's bid surety.

VI. Withdrawal of Bid

a. Bidders may withdraw or cancel their bids at any time prior to the advertised bid opening time by signing and submitting a request for said withdrawal. After the bid opening time, no bid shall be withdrawn or canceled for a period of sixty (60) calendar days.

VII. Award, Acceptance and Contract

- a. Owner will award the Contract to the lowest most responsible and responsive Bidder, as determined by Owner. In considering the Bidder's responsibility, the Owner may evaluate, among other factors, the ability of the Bidder to provide experienced labor sufficient in numbers to timely and properly complete the services, conformity with the Specifications, serviceability, quality, and the financial capability of the Bidder, and the performance of the Bidder on other projects.
- b. Bids will be awarded to one Bidder for the entire Project or to any series of Bidders for an appropriate proportion of the Project. If specified in the Bid Form, awards will be based upon the submitted unit prices.
- c. The acceptance of a bid will be by a Notice of Award, signed by a duly authorized representative of the Park District; no other act by the Park District shall constitute the acceptance of a bid. The acceptance of a bid by the Park District shall bind the successful Bidder to execute and perform the Work of the Contract. The successful Bidder to whom the Contract is awarded by the Park District shall sign and deliver to the Park District for execution by the Park District all required copies of the Contract, along with all required insurance and surety documents within ten (10) days after presentation to him of the Contract for signature. In case the Bidder shall fail or neglect to do so, he will be considered as having abandoned the Contract, and as being in default to the Owner. The Owner may thereupon re-advertise or otherwise award said Contract and forfeit the Bid Security.
- d. The Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, General Information, Drawings, if any, Specifications, Contractor Bid Form, Addenda, if any, Contractors Compliance and Certifications Attachment, and Substance Abuse Certification and the Prevailing Wage Determination and Supersedes Notice comprise the Bid Documents. The Bid Documents, together with the HVAC Services Agreement, included in these Bid Documents, Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond and proof of insurance comprise the Contract Documents.

VIII. Interpretation of the Contract Documents

a. The Park District shall in all cases determine the amount or quantity of the several kinds of Work which are to be paid for under this Contract and shall decide all questions which may arise relative to the execution of the Contract on the part of the Contractor, and all estimates and decisions shall be final and conclusive. The Park District shall have the right to make alterations in the lines, grades, plans, forms or dimensions of the Work herein contemplated either before or after the commencement of the Work. If such alterations diminish the quantity of the Work to be done, they shall not constitute a claim for damage or for anticipated profits on the Work dispensed with, or if they increase the amount of Work, such increase shall be paid according to the quantity actually done and at the price or prices stipulated for such Work in the Contract. The Park District reserves the right to approve an equal to or superior to product or equipment required under the Specifications or to reject as not being an equal to or superior to the product or equipment required under the Specifications. If the Bidder is in doubt as to the interpretation of any part of the Bid Documents or finds errors, discrepancies or omissions from any part of the Contract Documents, he must submit a written request for interpretation thereof not later than five (5) days (Match 18, 2021 at 5:00pm) prior to opening of bids to the Park District and the Architect, if applicable. Address all communications to **Kris Scharp** at the Park District. If an error or omission is discovered in the Bid Documents after the bid opening, the Park District reserves the right: i) to determine whether to require the submission of new bids; or ii) if the error or omission is of such a nature that it was reasonably discoverable upon a careful review of the Bid Documents, to award the Contract to the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder as determined by the Park District and to require that Contractor to perform the Work in accordance with an issued correction by the Park District and/or Architect and for the amount bid by the Contractor. Such decisions are final and not subject to recourse. Errors and omissions made by the Bidder cannot be corrected after the bid opening.

IX. Addenda

- a. Any interpretation, correction or addition to the Bid Documents will be made by written Addendum and will be delivered by mail, email or fax to each prime Bidder of record. The written Addenda constitute the only interpretations of the Bid Documents; the Park District accepts no responsibility for any other claimed interpretations or communications.
- b. It is the responsibility of each Bidder to verify that he has received all Addenda prior to submitting a bid. It is also the responsibility of each Bidder to verify that all subcontractors and material suppliers whose prices are incorporated in the Bidder's bid are familiar with the Bid Documents in their entirety, including all Addenda issued up to the time of bid opening.
- c. In the event a conflict or omission is discovered in the Bid Documents after the issuing of the last Addendum such that an interpretation cannot be issued by the Park District prior to bidding, the Bidder is directed to estimate on and provide the quantity and quality of material and labor consistent with the overall represented and indicated Work so as to provide all materials, equipment, labor and services necessary for the completion of the Work in accordance with the Bid Documents.

X. Substitutions during Bidding

- a. Unless otherwise indicated, brand names in the Specifications are used for the purpose of establishing a grade or quality. Bidders proposing to use an alternate that is equal or superior in every respect to that required by the Specifications must request approval in writing to the Park District at least seven (7) business days (March 16, 2021 at 5:00pm) prior to the bid opening and mark the item as "or approved equal."
- b. Additionally, Bidders requesting approval for use of an alternate must provide certification by the manufacturer that the substitute proposed is equal to or superior in every respect to that required by the Contract Documents and that its in-place performance will be equal to or superior to the product or equipment specified in the application indicated. The Bidder, in submitting the request for substitution, waives the right to additional payment or an extension of Contract Time because of the failure of the substitute to perform as represented in the request for substitution.
- c. The Park District may request additional information or documentation necessary for evaluation of the request for substitution. The Park District will notify all Bidders of acceptance of the proposed substitute by means of an Addendum to the Bid Documents. The Park District's approval of a substitute during bidding does not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility to submit required shop drawings and to comply with all other requirements of the Contract Documents, including but not limited to proper performance of all components of the Work and suitability for the uses specified.
- d. Bids proposing alternates not previously approved by the Park District will be considered non-responsive and rejected. The Park District reserves the right to determine whether a substituted selection, in its judgment, is equal to or of better quality and therefore an acceptable alternate. Such decisions are final and not subject to recourse.

XI. Bid Proposal Sum

- a. Bidders shall include the following costs as part of their bid proposal:
 - i. The cost of materials, labor and equipment, either specified or necessary for the implementation of the Work as described in the Scope of Services and Schedule B. Subcontracted labor, equipment or materials should be clearly identified.
 - ii. The cost of any material and/or labor which is not specifically described, but which is necessary to complete the Contract, including Project administration costs.
 - iii. The cost of a full-time qualified project manager for the duration of the Contract.
 - iv. The cost of transportation, insurances, bonds, warranties, permits and all other facilities, and the performance of all labor and services necessary for the proper completion of the Work, except as may be otherwise expressly provided in the Contract Documents.

XII. Partial Bids

a. Bids for only part of the Work may be considered. Such bids must cover all Work described in that section of the Specifications, including completion date.

XIII. Contract

a. The accepted Bidder is required to enter into a written contract with the Northbrook Park District, substantially in the same form included in these Bid Documents. For purposes of this Project Manual, the Contract is also referred to as the "Agreement."

XIV. Tax Exemption

a. The Northbrook Park District is not subject to federal excise or Illinois retailer's occupation tax. Bids shall not include federal excise tax or state sales tax for materials to be incorporated in or totally consumed in the prosecution of the Work. A tax exemption certificate will be furnished by the Park District at the request of the Bidder. The Park District's tax exemption number shall be used only by the successful Bidder for the Work of this Project.

XV. Postponement of Date for Opening Bids

a. The Northbrook Park District reserves the right to postpone the date of presentation and opening of bids and will give written notice of any such postponement to each interested party.

XVI. Term of Contract

- a. The term of the Contract will be for a one-year period. The term of the Contract may be extended for two additional one-year periods if approved by the District.
- b. Initial Term is June 1, 2024 to May 31, 2025
- c. Additional term year two is June 1, 2025 to May 31, 2026 and year three is June 1, 2026 to May 31, 2027.

END OF SECTION

BIDDERS CHECKLIST

	Please make sure y	you have all o	of these items o	completed before	submitting your	⁻ SEALED bid.
--	--------------------	----------------	------------------	------------------	-----------------	--------------------------

Completed Bid Form
Signed Addenda
Site Examination
Bid Bond – 10%
Subcontractors and Suppliers List Form
Contractor Compliance and Certifications Attachment Form
Affidavit of Experience Form
Required Bidder Information Form
Substance Abuse Prevention Program Certification
Bid Submittals • Each bid must be placed in an opaque, sealed envelope and clearly marked:
Rid Officer - Northbrook Park District

Bid Officer - Northbrook Park District HVAC Services – All Buildings, Bid #2264 Scheduled Bid Opening: March 21, 2024 @ 1:45pm

• If delivering by mail, the aforementioned opaque sealed envelope shall be placed in a mailing envelope (USPS, FedEx, UPS, etc.), and shall be addressed and delivered to:

Bid Officer - Northbrook Park District HVAC Services – All Buildings, Bid #2264 545 Academy Drive Northbrook, Illinois 60062

END OF SECTION

SERVICE SCHEDULE

I. Completion of Work

The Term of the Contract will be for a one-year period. The term of the Contract may be extended for two additional one-year periods if approved by the District.

Initial Term is June 1, 2024 to May 31, 2025

Additional term year two is June 1, 2025 to May 31, 2026 and year three is June 1, 2026 to May 31, 2027.

II. Schedule

The Contractor will provide to Owner a monthly service schedule that allocates adequate personnel and equipment to complete the entire monthly service schedule.

The Contractor will notify the Owner of any changes to the schedule.

III. Preventative Maintenance Service Schedule Submittal

Within fourteen (14) calendar days of Notice to Award, Contractor shall submit and review with the Owner a formal written preventative maintenance service schedule specifying the dates when the various items of Work are to be completed. Such schedule shall be strictly adhered to. All Work shall be prosecuted in an orderly and diligent manner. The Contractor shall cooperate with and conform to the requests of the Owner to expedite particular portions of the work where such alteration of the Contractor's operation is deemed advisable by the Owner.

END OF SECTION

GENERAL INFORMATION

I. Payment

- a. Terms for payment are governed by the *Local Government Prompt Payment Act, 50 ILCS 505/1, et.seq.*, and in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- b. Request for Payment should be made in accordance with the Contract Documents and should include the following information:
 - i. Name, address and phone number of the Bidder
 - ii. Invoice number
 - iii. Itemized statement of services
 - iv. Any payment discount terms offered
 - v. Complete W-9
 - vi. Certified Payroll
 - vii. Waivers
 - viii. Any other documents as required by the Contract Documents
 - ix. No prepayment of services

II. Guarantee and Warranty

- a. The successful Bidder warrants to the Northbrook Park District that all materials, supplies and equipment furnished will be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Specifications; that the materials, supplies and equipment will be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted; and that the materials, supplies and equipment will conform to the Specifications. Materials, supplies and equipment not conforming to the Specifications, including substitutions not properly approved or authorized, are defective and will be rejected by the Northbrook Park District. This warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, modifications not executed by the Bidder, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation or normal wear and tear and normal usage.
- b. The Contractor must present the Northbrook Park District with two (2) copies of any manufacturer's warranty or guarantee information. If needed, the Contractor agrees to assign any warranties and guarantees to the Northbrook Park District. The Contractor guarantees against any faulty materials or workmanship for a period of one (1) year after final payment. Any such defects must be corrected, either through repair or replacement, at the Contractor's expense.

III. Materials

a. All materials supplied by the Contractor shall be new materials of the like and kind specified. Defective materials and equipment, including those damaged during installation or testing, will not be accepted and must be replaced or repaired in a manner satisfactory to the Northbrook Park District.

IV. Completion Date

a. The Contractor shall complete the Work of this Project by the date set forth in the Service Schedule. Failure of the Contractor to complete this Work in accordance with the Specifications shall constitute a breach of the Contract.

V. Insurance

a. Contractor shall procure and maintain – for the duration of the Contract – insurance against claims for death, injuries to persons, or damages to property that may arise from or in connection with the performance of Work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors of the types and in the amounts listed below.

i. Commercial General and Umbrella Liability Insurance

1. The Contractor shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than \$1,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Project location. CGL insurance shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) Occurrence Form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent coverage and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-completed operations, personal injury, advertising injury and liability assumed under an insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). Owner, Architect and Construction Manager shall be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage under the commercial umbrella, if any. This insurance shall apply as primary.

ii. Business Auto and Umbrella Liability Insurance

The Contractor shall maintain business auto liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than \$1,000,000 each accident. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of any auto, including owned, hired and non-owned autos. Business auto insurance shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CA 00 0 I, CA 00 05, CA 00 12 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage equivalent to that provided in the 1990 and later editions of CA 00 01.

iii. Workers Compensation Insurance

1. The Contractor shall maintain workers compensation as required by statute and employers liability insurance. The commercial umbrella and/or employer's liability limits shall not be less than \$1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident or \$1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. If the Owner has not been included as an insured under the CGL using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 under the Commercial General and Umbrella Liability Insurance required in this Contract, the Contractor waives all rights against Owner and its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents for recovery of damages arising out of or incident to the Contractor's work.

iv. General Insurance Provisions

1. Evidence of Insurance

a. Prior to beginning Work, Contractor shall furnish Owner with a certificate of insurance and applicable policy endorsements, executed by a duly authorized representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth above. All certificates shall provide for 30 days written notice to Owner prior to the cancellation or material change of insurance referred to therein. Written notice to Owner shall be by certified mail, return receipt requested. Failure of Owner to demand such certificate, endorsement or other evidence of full compliance with these insurance requirements or failure of Owner to identify a deficiency from evidence that is provided shall not be construed as a waiver of Contractor's obligation to maintain such insurance. Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, of prohibiting Contractor or any subcontractor from entering the Project site until such certificates or other evidence that insurance has been placed in complete compliance with these requirements is received and approved by Owner. Failure to maintain the required insurance may result in termination of this Contract at Owner's option. With respect to insurance maintained after final payment in compliance with a requirement above, an additional certificate shall provide certified copies all insurance policies required above within ten (10) days of Owner's written request for said copies.

2. Acceptability of Insurers

a. For insurance companies that obtain a rating from A.M. Best, that rating should be no less than a VII, using the most recent edition of the A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide. If the Best's rating is less than a VII or a Best's rating is not obtained, the Owner has the right to reject insurance written by an insurer it deems unacceptable.

3. Cross-Liability Coverage

a. If Contractor's liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of insureds provision, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage.

4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

a. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to the Owner. At the option of the Owner, the Contractor may be asked to eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the Owner, its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents or required to procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and other related costs including but not limited to investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

5. Subcontractors

 a. Contractor shall cause each subcontractor employed by Contractor to purchase and maintain insurance of the type specified above.
 When requested by the Owner, Contractor shall furnish copies of certificates of insurance evidencing coverage for each subcontractor.

VI. Indemnification

a. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Northbrook Park District and its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including but not limited to legal fees (attorney's and paralegal's fees and court costs), arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Contractor's work, provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense (i) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or injury to or destruction of tangible property, other than the work itself, including the loss of use resulting there from and (ii) is caused in whole or in part by any wrongful or negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except to the extent it is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. The Contractor shall similarly protect, indemnify and hold and save harmless the Northbrook Park District, its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents against and from any and all claims, costs, causes, actions and expenses including but not limited to legal fees, incurred by reason of Contractor's breach of any of its obligations under, or the Contractor's default of, any provision of the Contract.

VII. Village Permits

a. Upon signing this Contract, the Contractor is responsible for submitting, coordinating and obtaining all necessary permits associated with the covered equipment replacements of this

Project. The Contractor is not responsible for revising and/or altering the design as shown on the plans based on the permit review unless the Contractor is the author of the plans, or as otherwise required under the Contract. All costs associated with permitting are to be included in the general conditions of this Contract.

VIII. Service Meetings

a. Contractor shall attend monthly on-site meetings scheduled by the Park District to review preventative maintenance and repair services and address service concerns.

IX. Minimum Contractor Qualifications

- a. Contractor must have been in business for a minimum of five years prior to the Bid Due Date and Time. Contractor shall provide supporting documentation (i.e., Business License) that confirms Contractor has been in business for a minimum of five years prior to the Bid Due Date and Time.
- b. Contractor must have a minimum of six (6) full-time employees, who have a minimum of five (5) years of experience as an HVAC service and repair technician and the ability to work with refrigerants. The contractor must submit the following information for each of the six (6) full-time employees who have a minimum of five (5) years of experience:
 - i. Full Name
 - ii. Job Title
 - iii. Work history that indicates the five years of experience as an HVAC technician
 - iv. Copy of any applicable training certificates and licenses.

END OF SECTION

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

The American Institute of Architects AIA Document G702 - Application and Certificate for Payment, 1992 Edition, including Continuation Sheet G703, is hereby made a part of the Contract Documents.

Copies of this Document are available from:

Chicago Chapter Office of the American Institute of Architects 222 Merchandise Mart Plaza Chicago, Illinois 60604 (312) 670-7770

CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENT OF DEBTS AND CLAIMS

The American Institute of Architects AIA Document G706 - Contractor's Affidavit of Payment of Debts and Claims, 1994 Edition, is hereby made a part of the Contract Documents.

Copies of this Document are available from:

Chicago Chapter Office of the American Institute of Architects 222 Merchandise Mart Plaza Chicago, Illinois 60604 (312) 670-7770

END OF SECTION

NOTICE OF AWARD (SAMPLE)

Subject: NORTHBROOK PARK DISTRICT	
Dear Mr. / Ms:	
The Northbrook Park District (Owner) has considered the Bid subm	roject dated
You are hereby notified that your Bid has been accepted for the B. \$	ase Bid in the amount of
You are required to execute the Agreement and furnish the required insurance within ten (10) calendar days from the date of this Notice execute said Agreement and to furnish said bonds and insurance of Owner will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the abandoned and as a forfeiture of your Bid Bond. The Owner will be as may be granted by law.	ce of Award. If you fail to within ten (10) days, the acceptance of your bid as
You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this Notice of	f Award to the Owner.
Sincerely,	
James Kim Director of Parks & Properties	
****************	********
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE	
Receipt of this "NOTICE OF AWARD" is hereby acknowledged this 20	day of,
_	
S	ignature
P	Print Name
	 itle

NOTICE TO PROCEED (SAMPLE)

SUBJECT:	NORTHBROOK PARK DISTRICT	
	(PROJECT NAME)	
Dear Mr. / M	1s,	
	is hereby notified to comme	nce work on the above Project as shown in the Contract
and to comp	elete the Project as specified by	, unless otherwise authorized.
	n an acknowledged copy of this "NC ive, Northbrook, IL 60062.	TICE TO PROCEED" to the Northbrook Park District, 545
Sincerely,		
James Kim		
Director of P	Parks & Properties	
*****	********	***********
		E OF NOTICE
Receipt of th	-	acknowledged this day of,
		Signature
		Driet Nove
		Print Name

	ĺ			2	iliy ige	efits		Vacation 0.30 Training 0.40	We give you fund, please fift rate. On Act, please
5		>			Fringe	Benefits	Pension Health &	Vaca	d into a ge bene of the
- באלב באלב ב	THE	TE AGENC TE AGENC H, NC 2759	8 8	Period	NA NA	Reg	736.00	1,200.00	or nonunior s rate is pai thindthe frin ng coverage
Dublic Rody Information	is an incliniation	Contact Version: SALLY SMITH Public Body Name: STATE AGENCY Address: 100 STATE ST 100 STATE ST (ity, State, Zip, RALIEGH, NC 27599 Telephone: (555)555-9876	0.00	Per Pay Period	PW.	Reg	520.00	0.00	of your union fringe benefit ne letter 'E' be lation regardir
lic Box	1	ntact Pe blic Bod dress: 1 100 /, State, ephone		TOT Total	D. W.	Reg	15.00	30.00	ardless n. If the lacing the
Contract Information Dur	5 (A PE		Hourly	_	Reg		20.00	ion, reg program ote by p you wis
		N O		otal ⊃Tal		Reg	8.00		assificat oproved olease n oject. If
		Contract Number: Sarple Project Project Number: Sample Project Project Location: ACME BUILDING CORPORATION Project Location: ACME BUILDING CORPORATION A12345 MAIN STREET ANYWHERE, US 12345		Total		Reg	48.00		work cland BAT at the check, put this pro
		O RE	s Allotm			2/12 R	8.00 44		are in a payroll o
	Ļ	Omnata Number: 3897-241-Hcur- Project Number: 38-79-27-Hcur- Project Location: ACME BULLDING CORF Project Location: ACME BULLDING CORF ANYWHERE, US 12345	Benefit			7117	-		equirectologees loyee's mpany
		Contract Number Sample Project Number Sample Project Number Sample Project Project Location: ACME BUILDING 12345 MAIN STREET ANYWHERE, US 12345	Fringe	Hours Worked Each Day	SAT	2/10	8.00		if itis r our emp an empl
20	50700	tot number: 839/92/IHTB t Number: 8ample Project t: 3RD ELOOR DEMOLIT t Location: ACME BUILD 12345 MAIN STREET ANYWHERE, US 12345	Hourly	orked E		6/7	8.00		be paid ing if ye ed on a
Contract Information	on make	mber: & liber: A libe	e and	ours W	WED THU FRI	2/8	8.00		d train includ
act In	מכן וווו	act Num of Num of Loca 12345 ANYV	ge Rat	Ĭ _	WED	7/7	8.00		aining) any) an rate is nd own
Contr		Projec Projec	lling Wa		E E	7/P	PW 8.00	z	olan (if a olan (if a benefit
		ON COMPANY	vertime Hours. List Hourly Preva	IDOL Case File Number:	/4-002 Labor	CLASSIFICATION	CARPENTER		salth insurance, pension, vacation, and training) must be paid, if itis required for the work classification, regardless of your union or nonunion status. We give y and ERISA approved pension plan (if any) and training if your employees are in a BAT approved program. If the fringe benefits rate is paid into a fund, pleas the fringe benefit rate is included on an employee's payroll check, please note by placing the letter 'E' behindthe fringe benefit rate. On procreasing the program of the program of the program of the Act, please procreasing the program of the Act, please the program of the Act, please the Act, please the Act is project.
Contractor and/or Subcontractor	Contractor and of Subscript	Company Name: PEM CONSTRUCTION COMPANY Address: P.O. BOX 217 C124 MANN STREET City, State. Zip: CLAYTON, NC 27528 Telephone: (919)639-7025	for Each Day, In-	0	Z/1Z/2007 Employee Name, Address	SSN & Telephone #	BOB SMITH 1234 MAIN STREET ANYWHERE USA, CA 12345	987-55-1234 (555)555-1234	INSTRUCTIONS: Fringe benefits (health insurance, pension, vacation, and training) must be paid, if itis required for the work classification, regardless of your union or nonunion status. We give you credit for healthinsurance paid (if any) and ERISA approved pension plan (if any) and training if your employees are in a BAT approvedprogram. If the fringe benefits rate is paid into a fund, please note by placing the letter "E" behind the fringe benefit rate; if the fringe benefit rate is included on an employee's payroll check, please note by placing the letter "E behindthe fringe benefit rate of the fringe benefit rate of the fringe benefit rate of the Act; please is the back of the status of the action of the Act; please is the status of the Act; please is the status of the Act; please is the status of the Act; please is a training of the Act; please is the status of the Act; please is the Act and the Act and the Act are actions of the Act and the Act are actions of the Act are actions o

Attach explanation of Monies paid, copy of contract of billing, or other pertinent information Illinois Department of Labor State of Illinois SUBCONTRACTORS (zipcode) (state) Telephone Number: (000)000-0000 Company Name: Contact Person: Address: (city) 용 hereby state: that I pay or supervise the payment that during the payroll period commencing on the 5 day of FEBRUARY , 2007 , rebates have been or will be made either directly from the full weekly wages earned by any person all persons employed on said project have been paid the full weekly wages earned, that no or the persons employed on the public works. Project 859797/HHGDF **Ceritifed Transcipt of Payroll** or indirectly to or on behalf of said PEM CONSTRUCTION COMPANY Weekly Statement of Compliance (name of contractor or subcontractor) JOHN SMITH (name of signatory party) 859792/HHGDF (name of project) PRESIDENT **AFFIDAVIT** 2/12/2007 (Little) Date:

Northbrook Park District

Digital Signature

Law. I further certify that this payroll is correct and complete; that the wage rates contained therein are not less the actual rates herein stated and that the classification set forth for each laborers or mechanic conform to the work he/she

performed.

and that no dedcutions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full weekly wages earned by any person, other than permissible deductions as defined by Federal and/or State

IMPORTANT NOTICE OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR PERIODIC REVISIONS TO PREVAILING WAGE RATES

Revisions of the Prevailing Wage Rates are made periodically by the Illinois Department of Labor (IDOL). As required by the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, the contractor/subcontractor has an obligation to check IDOL's web site for revisions to prevailing wage rates. These revisions may be accessed by computer at http://labor.illinois.gov/. Bidders and contractors performing work on this Project are responsible for determining the applicable prevailing wage rates at the time of bid submission and performance of the Work. Failure of a bidder/contractor to make such determination shall not relieve it of its obligations in accordance with the Contract Documents. In consideration for the award to it of the contract for this Project, the contractor agrees that the foregoing notice satisfies any obligation of the public body in charge of this Project to notify the contractor of periodic changes in the prevailing wage rates and the contractor agrees to assume and be solely responsible for, as a material obligation of the contractor under the contract, the obligation to determine periodic revisions of the prevailing wage rates, to notify its subcontractors of such revisions, to post such revisions as required for the posting of wage rates under the Act, and to pay and require its subcontractors to pay wages in accordance with such revised rates.

A link for more information on how to access IDOL's Certified Transcript of Payroll Portal is here: https://www2.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/Pages/certifiedtranscriptofpayroll.aspx

BID FORM HVAC Services - All Buildings, Bid #2264

Proposal of	
Hereinafter called "Bidder", (a)/(an)	_(corporation, partnership, individual)
doing business as	
to the Northbrook Park District, hereinafter called "Owne	r."
Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda, w Addenda Numbers:,,,	·
Du submission of his hid, the Ridder asknowledges agreed	c represents declares and warrants

By submission of his bid, the Bidder acknowledges, agrees, represents, declares and warrants:

- I. That he has visited and examined the site and is fully familiar with and has satisfied himself as to the site and the local and other conditions under which the Work is to be performed, including without limitation, (i) surface conditions of the site and subsurface conditions readily observable or ascertainable upon the exercise of reasonable diligence and all structures and obstructions thereon and thereunder, both natural and manmade; (ii) the nature, location and character of the general area in which the Project is located, including without limitation, its climatic conditions, available labor supply and labor costs, and available equipment supply and equipment costs; and (iii) the quality and quantity of all materials, supplies, tools, equipment, labor and professional services necessary to complete the Work in the manner and within the cost and timeframe indicated by the Contract Documents; and has correlated the Bidder's personal observations with the requirements of and matters indicated in or by the proposed Contract Documents.
- II. To hold the bid open for sixty (60) days subsequent to the date of the bid opening.
- III. To enter into and execute a Contract with the Owner within ten (10) days after the date of the Notice of Award, if awarded on the basis of this bid, and in connection therewith to:
 - a. Furnish all bonds and insurance required by the Contract Documents;
 - b. Accomplish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; and
 - c. Complete the Work within the time requirements as set forth in the Contract Documents.
- That the Bidder has carefully examined the Instructions to Bidders, the Drawings and IV. Specifications, and the Project Manual in its entirety, in order to determine how these affect the bid proposal, the forms of the Contract, the required Contract bonds, and duration thereof; and that the Bidder has inspected in detail the site of the proposed Work and been familiarized with all of the requirements of construction and of the governing municipalities under whose jurisdiction the Project falls (its codes, ordinances and construction requirements therein) and understands that in making this proposal, the Bidder waives all rights to plead any misunderstanding regarding the same.

- V. That if this proposal is accepted, the Bidder is to provide all of the necessary equipment, tools, apparatus, labor, and other means of construction, and to do all of the Work and to furnish all of the materials specified in the Contract Documents in the manner and at the time therein prescribed, and in accordance with the requirements set forth.
- **VI.** To furnish Bid Bond in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders.
- **VII.** To furnish Performance/Labor and Material Payment Bond in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders.
- VIII. To commence work as specified in the Instructions to Bidders and to prosecute the Work in such a manner and with sufficient materials, equipment and labor as will ensure its completion within reasonable time, it being understood and agreed that the completion within such reasonable time is an essential part of this Contract.
- **IX.** To give the total base bid amount, the total add alternate and/or subtract alternate amounts (if requested) both in words and in figures. The total bid amount in each case shall be the sum of all of the total item amounts as applicable and as described above.

<u>Bidders are responsible for verifying their own quantities</u>. This worksheet is for use in calculating the Lump Sum amount. Contractor is required to alert Park District to any discrepancies prior to performing the work. Failure to recognize the required shall be at the expense of the contractor. No consideration shall be given for additional compensation after the letting of bids.

Bidder agrees to perform all of the Work described in the Contract Documents for the following price provided on the following pages:

Base Bid - Preventative Maintenance

Monthly Preventative Maintenance Fee: Monthly preventative maintenance fee, for the purpose of this Contract, shall be defined as the monetary charge, in equal monthly installments over the term of the Contract, for the preventative maintenance services required or reasonably inferred by the Contract Documents as listed in Schedule B of this project manual, including all tools, travel, parts, labor, materials and equipment.

FACILITY	COST/MONTH YEAR 1 6/1/24 – 5/31/25	COST/MONTH YEAR 2 6/1/ 25 - 5/31/26	COST/MONTH YEAR 3 6/1/26 – 5/31/27
545 ACADEMY DRIVE	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
HERITAGE OAKS CLUBHOUSE	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
HERITAGE OAKS RANGE SERVICE BUILDING	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
HERITAGE OAKS HALFWAY HOUSE	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
HERITAGE OAKS MAINTENANCE BLDG	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
LEISURE CENTER	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
MEADOWHILL AQUATIC CENTER	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
SPORTS CENTER HVAC	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
SPORTS CENTER CONCESSION STAND	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
SPORTS CENTER POOL HEATERS/PUMPS	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
TECHNY PRAIRIE ACTIVITY CENTER	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
VILLAGE GREEN CENTER	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
Total Monthly Service Fees	\$/month	\$/month	\$/month
Total Sum Per Year	\$/Year 1	\$/Year 2	\$/Year 3

Base Bid - Repairs & Component Replacement Labor Rates and Parts & Materials Cost

Repairs & Component Replacement Labor Rates and Parts & Materials Cost, for the purpose of this Contract, shall be defined as the monetary charge, over the term of the Contract, for the work to repair and/or replace components of covered equipment, and are items not covered under the preventative maintenance services required or reasonably inferred by the Contract Documents as listed in Schedule B of this project manual, including all tools, travel, parts, labor, materials and equipment.

LABOR Business Hours of 7:00am – 4:00pm	HOURLY RATE
Lead Technician (Supervisor/Foreman)	\$
Apprentice	\$
Laborer	\$
Electrician	\$

LABOR After Hours of 4:00pm – 7:00am, weekends and Park District holidays	HOURLY RATE
Lead Technician (Supervisor/Foreman)	\$
Apprentice	\$
Laborer	\$
Electrician	\$

PARTS & MATERIALS Contractor's Percentage of Mark-Up for Parts & Materials	PERCENTAGE
Mark up shall not exceed 10%	%

SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS LIST

The subcontractors and suppliers listed below will be involved in this contract work in the assignments listed. We understand that any deviation from this list must be requested and approved in writing ten (10) days before the start of the work that is involved.

Failure to complete this list will result in rejection of bid.

Legal name, current telephone number and address of all subcontractors must be included.

Subcontractors/Assignment

Legal Name	Address	City, State, Zip	Telephone
1.			
2.			
3.			
4.			

Suppliers/Materials

Legal Name	Address	City, State, Zip	Telephone
1.			
2.			
3.			
4.			

CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE AND CERTIFICATIONS ATTACHMENT

Note: The following certifications form an integral part of the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor. Breach by Contractor of any of the certifications may result in immediate termination of the Contractor's services by Owner.

THE UNDERSIGNED CONTRACTOR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES, CERTIFIES, AFFIRMS AND AGREES AS FOLLOWS:

- Contractor has carefully read and understands the contents, purpose and legal effect of this document as stated above and hereafter in this document. The certifications contained herein are true, complete and correct in all respects.
- II. Contractor shall abide by and comply with, and in contracts which it has with all persons providing any of the services or Work on this Project on its behalf shall require compliance with, all applicable Federal, State and local laws and rules and regulations, including without limitation those relating to 1) fair employment practices, affirmative action and prohibiting discrimination in employment; 2) workers' compensation; 3) workplace safety; 4) wages and claims of laborers, mechanics and other workers, agents or servants in any manner employed in connection with contracts involving public funds or the development or construction of public works, buildings or facilities; and 5) steel products procurement.
- III. All contracts for this Project are subject to the provisions of the Illinois *Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq.)*, providing for the payment of the prevailing rate of wage to all laborers, workmen and mechanics engaged in the Work. Contractor shall pay prevailing rates of wages in accordance with the wage determination issued by the Illinois Department of Labor and any subsequent determinations issued by the Illinois Department of Labor, all in accordance with applicable law. These revisions may be accessed by computer at http://labor.illinois.gov/. Contractor is responsible for determining the applicable prevailing wage rates at the time of bid submission and at the time of performance of the Work. Failure of Contractor to make such determination shall not relieve it of its obligations in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor also shall comply with all other requirements of the Act, including without limitation those pertaining to inclusion of required language in subcontracts, job site posting, maintenance and submission of certified payroll records and inspection of records. Contractor is not barred from entering into public contracts under Section 11a of the *Illinois Prevailing Wage Act* due to its having been found to have disregarded its obligations under the Act.
- IV. To the best of Contractor's knowledge, no officer or employee of Contractor has been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or any unit of local government, nor has any officer or employee made an admission of guilt of such conduct that is a matter of record.
- V. Contractor is not barred from bidding on or entering into public contracts due to having been convicted of bid-rigging or bid rotating under paragraphs 33E-3 or 33E-4 of the *Illinois Criminal Code*. Contractor also certifies that no officers or employees of the Contractor have been so convicted and that Contractor is not the successor company or a new company created by the officers or owners of one so convicted. Contractor further certifies that any such conviction occurring after the date of this certification will be reported to the Owner immediately in

writing, if it occurs during the bidding process, or otherwise prior to entering into the Contract therewith.

- VI. Pursuant to the *Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/2-105)*, Contractor has a written sexual harassment policy that includes, at a minimum, the following information: (i) a statement on the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of sexual harassment under State law; (iii) a description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; (iv) the Contractor's internal complaint process, including penalties; (v) the legal recourse, investigative and complaint process available through the Illinois Department of Human Rights and the Human Rights Commission and directions on how to contact both; and (vi) protection against retaliation as provided by Section 6-101 of the *Illinois Human Rights Act*. Contractor further certifies that such policy shall remain in full force and effect. A copy of the policy shall be provided to the Illinois Department of Human Rights upon request.
- VII. Contractor shall abide by the "Employment of Illinois Workers on Public Works Act" (30 ILCS 570/0.01 et seq.), which stipulates that whenever there is a period of excessive unemployment in Illinois, defined as any month immediately following two (2) consecutive calendar months during which the level of unemployment in Illinois exceeds five percent (5%) as measured by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics in its monthly publication of employment and unemployment figures, the Contractor shall employ only Illinois laborers unless otherwise exempted as so stated in the Act. ("Illinois laborer" means any person who has resided in Illinois for at least 30 days and intends to become or remain an Illinois resident). Other laborers may be used if Illinois laborers are not available or are incapable of performing the particular type of work involved, if so certified by the Contractor and approved by the Owner.
- VIII. (i) Contractor's bid proposal was made without any connection or common interest in the profits anticipated to be derived from the Contract by Contractor with any other persons submitting any bid or proposal for the Contract; (ii) the Contract terms are in all respects fair, and the Contract will be entered into by Contractor without collusion or fraud; (iii) no official, officer or employee of the Owner has any direct or indirect financial interest in Contractor's bid proposal or in Contractor, (iv) the Contractor has not directly or indirectly provided, and shall not directly or indirectly provide, funds or other consideration to any person or entity (including, but not limited to, the Owner and the Owner's employees and agents), to procure improperly special or unusual treatment with respect to this Agreement or for the purpose of otherwise improperly influencing the relationship between the Owner and the Contractor. Additionally, the Contractor shall cause all of its officers, directors and employees (as the case may be) to comply with the restrictions contained in the preceding sentence.
- IX. Contractor knows and understands the *Equal Employment Opportunity Clause* administrated by the Illinois Department of Human Rights, which is incorporated herein by this reference, and agrees to comply with the provisions thereof. Contractor further certifies that Contractor is an "equal opportunity employer" as defined by Section 2000 (e) of Chapter 21, Title 42 of the *United States Code Annotated and Executive Orders #11246 and #11375* as amended, which are incorporated herein by this reference.
- **X.** Neither Contractor nor any substantially owned affiliated company is participating or shall participate in an international boycott in violation of the provisions of the *U.S. Export*

Administration Act of 1979 or the regulations of the U.S. Department of Commerce promulgated under that Act.

- XI. Contractor is not barred from contracting with the Owner because of any delinquency in the payment of any tax administrated by the Illinois Department of Revenue, unless it is being contested. Contractor further certifies that it understands that making a false statement regarding delinquency in taxes is a Class A misdemeanor and, in addition, voids the Contract and allows the Owner, a municipal entity, to recover in a civil action all amounts paid to the Contractor.
- XII. If Contractor has 25 or more employees at the time of letting of the Contract, Contractor knows, understands and acknowledges its obligations under the *Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/1 et seq.*) and certifies that it will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the actions required under, and otherwise implementing on a continuing basis, Section 3 of the *Drug-Free Workplace Act*. Contractor further certifies that it has not been debarred and is not ineligible for award of this Contract as the result of a violation of the *Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act*.
- XIII. Contractor knows, understands and acknowledges its obligations under the *Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Act, 820 ILCS 265/1 et seq.* A true and complete copy of Contractor's Substance Abuse Prevention Program Certification is attached to and made a part of this Contractor Compliance and Certification Attachment.
- XIV. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements and provisions of the *Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et. seq.)* and, upon request, of the Northbrook Park District's designated Freedom of Information Act Officer (FOIA Officer). Contractor shall within two (2) business days of said request turn over to the FOIA Officer any record in the possession of the Contractor that is deemed a public record under FOIA.

Sign and Date:		Firm Name:		
Print Name & Title	::	Address:		
Phone:				
Fax:		Email:		
*****	*****			
STATE OF	SS. COUNTY OF _			
I, the undersigned	, a notary public in and for the	State and County aforesaid, hereby certify that		
being first duly sw	orn on oath, acknowledged th	appeared before me this day in person and, at he is authorized to act on behalf of Bidder and that act and deed of Bidder.		
Dated:	20	Notary Public:		

SUBSTANCE ABUSE PREVENTION PROGRAM CERTIFICATION

The Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act, 820 ILCS 265/1 et seq. ("Act"), prohibits any employee of the Contractor or any Subcontractor on a public works project from using, possessing or being under the influence of a drug or alcohol, as those terms are defined in the Act, while performing work on the project. The Contractor/Subcontractor [circle one], by its undersigned representative, hereby certifies and represents to the Northbrook Park District that [Contractor/Subcontractor must complete either Part I or Part II below]:

The Contractor/Subcontractor <u>[circle one]</u> has in place – for all of its employees not covered by a collective bargaining agreement that deals with the subject of the Act – a written substance					
abuse prevention program, a true and correct copy of which is attached to this certification, that					
meets or exceeds the requirements of the Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Act, 820					
ILCS 265/1 et seq. [Contractor/Subcontractor must attach a copy of its substance abuse					
prevention program to this Certification.]					
Name of Contractor/Subcontractor (print or type)					
Name and Title of Authorized Representative (print or type)					
Name and The of Nathonized Representative (print of type)					
Dated:					
Signature of Authorized Representative					
The Contractor/Subcontractor [circle one] has one or more collective bargaining agreements in					
effect for all of its employees that deal with the subject matter of the <i>Substance Abuse</i>					
Prevention on Public Works Projects Act, 820 ILCS 265/1 et seq.					
Trevention on tubile vvolks trojects het, 020 fees 2007 fee seq.					
Name of Contractor/Subcontractor (print or type)					
Name and Title of Authorized Representative (print or type)					
Signature of Authorized Representative Dated:					
U : 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1					

AFFIDAVIT OF EXPERIENCE

	, being duly sworn, says that he is								
		of							
(Sole Owner, M	(Sole Owner, Member of Firm, Corporate Official) (Individual, Firm, Corporate Name)								
under this Cont authorize the N	ract: (list project name	, contact, phone number ar to contact the individuals I	nd and approximate magnind date of completion). I/weisted below. Please list at le	e hereby					
	ame/Owner ect Scope	Contact Name & Title	Phone & Email (both REQUIRED)	Completion Date & Project Value					
<u> </u>	-	GA 11.010							
	Signature	******	* *						
		STATE OF ILLINOIS							
		SS. COUNTY OF COOK							
I, the undersign	ed, a notary public in a	nd for the State and Count	y aforesaid, hereby certify t	hat					
first duly sworn	on oath, acknowledge		before me this day in persoct on behalf of Bidder and t						
•	_	and deed and as the act and							
Dated:	20	My Commission Expires:		<u>-</u>					
	(Notary Seal)	Notary	y Public:						

2.

3.

4.

5.

REQUIRED BIDDER INFORMATION

The following information must be attached to the bid proposal. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of the Bidder. These may be listed on a separate sheet.

i. 	List all preventative maintenance and service repair projects your organization has in progress, giving the name of the project, project description, project address, owner and telephone number, architect and telephone number, contract amount, percent complete, and scheduled completion date.
ii.	List all preventative maintenance and service repair projects your organization has completed in the past two years that are comparable in scope, giving the name of the project, project description, project address, owner and telephone number. Also provide the original contract amount, the final contract amount, the substantial and final completion dates provided for in the contract, and the actual dates of substantial and final completion. Where the final contract amount is materially greater than the contract amount included in the contract at the time of execution by both parties, provide an explanation of the reason(s) for the increase. Where the actual dates of substantial and/or final completion differ from those dates as included in the contract at time of execution by both parties, explain the reason for the delay in the substantial and/or final completion of the Work.
iii.	List all administrative proceedings and litigation filed by or against Bidder in the past five (5) years, including the name and case number, name/jurisdiction of the court or administrative agency, and a summary of each claim/case, including current status and – if no longer pending – the disposition The foregoing includes but is not limited to information regarding any proceedings and actions taken by any governmental agency to debar or disqualify the Bidder from bidding on public contracts, including the name of the agency initiating the proceeding/action, the nature of the proceeding/action, the claimed basis for the proceeding/action, and the current status or disposition of the proceeding/action.

iv.	Indicate all instances in which Bidder has been rejected for not being a responsible bidder, giving the name of the project, project description, project address, owner and telephone number, architect and telephone number, contract amount, and an explanation of the circumstances surrounding the rejection.
v.	Provide a list of all contracts to which you were a party and with respect to which you were declared to be in breach of one or more provisions, giving the type of contract, the project location where applicable, the names and addresses of the parties to the contract, the name of the party declaring the breach, the nature of the claimed breach and current status or resolution of the claim If it is a preventative maintenance and service repair contract, also provide the name, address and telephone number of the architect and, if applicable, the construction manager or owner's representative.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

I. General

1. Definitions

The following terms as used in these Contract Documents are defined as follows:

- a. "Owner" Northbrook Park District, herein collectively referred to as the "Park District."
- b. "Parks Representative" That person or entity authorized by the Park District to act, give or receive information and direct the project in the Park District's behalf with the scope of the contract terms; in this contract the Director of Parks & Properties, Assistant Trades Manager, and/or Facility Maintenance Manager unless otherwise specified.
- c. "Contract Documents/Specifications" The Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, General Information, Scope of Services, Drawings if any, Specifications, Contractor Bid Form, Addenda, if any, Contractors Compliance and Certifications Attachment, and Substance Abuse Certification and the Prevailing Wage Determination and Supersedes Notice comprise the Bid Documents. The Bid Documents, together with the HVAC Services Agreement included in these Bid Documents, and the Performance Bond and Labor Material Payment Bond and proof of insurance comprise the Contract Documents.
- d. "Contractor" The person, firm or corporation to whom the contract is awarded by the Owner and who is subject to the terms thereof.
- e. "Subcontractor" A person, firm or corporation, other than the contractor supplying services, labor or materials for work on the project.
- f. "Project" The services, labor or materials proposed by the Owner to be performed in part or in whole pursuant to the Contract.
- g. "Work" The services required or reasonably inferred by the Contract Documents, including all labor, materials and equipment.

In interpreting the Contract Documents, words describing materials or words which have well-known technical or trade meaning, unless specifically defined in the Contract Documents, shall be constructed in accordance with such well-known meaning recognized by architects, engineers, manufacturers, or the trade. Other words shall be constructed as defined in the other contract documents.

2. Intent of the Contract Documents

The Contract Documents are complimentary, and what is called for by any one shall be as binding as if called for by all. The intention of the Contract Documents is to include in the Contract Price, the cost of all labor and materials, equipment, transportation and all other expense(s) as may be necessary for the proper execution of the Work. If certain Contract Documents appear to be in conflict, the Contractor shall promptly bring these provisions to the attention of the Owner and the Owner shall determine the applicable provision.

3. Patents and Copyrights

- a. The Contractor shall hold and save the Owner and its officers, agents, servants and employees harmless from liability of any nature or kind, including cost and expenses for, or on account of, any patented or unpatented invention, process, article or appliance manufactured.
- b. License or Royalty Fees License and/or Royalty Fees for the use of a process which is authorized by the Owner in writing must be reasonable and paid to the holder of the patent or copyright, or his authorized licensee, directly to the Owner, and not by or through, the Contractor. Such fee(s) shall be included in the Contract Price.

4. Regulations

The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on the conduct of the Work.

5. Subcontracts - Notification

Prior to the beginning of Work, the Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing of the names of any Subcontractors proposed for the principal parts of the Work, and shall not employ any sub-contractor that the Owner objects to as incompetent or unfit.

6. Assignment

The Contractor shall not make any purported assignment of this Contract or any part thereof, or delegate the duties herewith, without prior written consent of the Owner.

No assignment of the Contract shall be effective unless it shall contain a provision that the funds to be paid to the assignee under the assignment are subject to a prior lien for services rendered or materials supplied for the performance of the Work called for in said Contract in favor of all persons, firms, or corporations rendering such services or supplying such materials.

7. Notice

Wherein, any of the Contract Documents, there is any provision with respect to the giving of any notice, such notices shall be deemed to have been given, as to the Owner, when written notice shall have been delivered personally to the Park District, or shall have been placed in the United States mails, postage fully prepaid, addressed to the Parks and Properties Director, Northbrook Park District, 545 Academy Drive, Northbrook, IL 60062; as to the Contractor when written notice shall have been delivered to any officer of the Contractor or when a written notice shall have been placed in the United States mails, postage prepaid, addressed to the Contractor, at the place stated in the Bid Form as the address of his permanent place of business.

II. Project

1. Covered Equipment

This Contract shall cover equipment listed in Schedule "A." The following items pertaining to the HVAC system and equipment are not included in this agreement such as window air conditioning units, replacement or repair of duct work or unit cabinets, maintenance or repair of electrical wiring (including any control wiring from the operating panel to the equipment and within the equipment), drains, modifications of the system to comply with recommendations or directives

of insurance companies or government agencies, hydronic piping outside of equipment rooms and maintenance of thermostats.

Only one contractor will be selected for award of the HVAC Contract. The Park District may elect to not include an entire building or a portion of a building as identified by individual lines on the bid form.

2. Preventative Maintenance

This Contract shall include preventative maintenance on all covered systems and equipment, consistent with the Preventive Maintenance Service Schedule "B." This Contract covers all necessary tools, equipment, labor, travel, parts and materials as required. Parts listed in the Specifications, Schedule B are included in the cost of preventative maintenance (belts, pulleys, gaskets, seals, refrigerant, oil, grease, etc. This list is not all inclusive).

3. Repair and Component Replacement

a. This contract covers necessary tools, equipment, labor, travel, parts, materials, components and all other expenses required to keep covered equipment in good working order.

The Contractor is required to accept equipment "as is." No additional compensation will be allowed to modify or repair equipment to meet Contractor's acceptance requirements. When conditions warrant, Contractor will repair or replace worn, broken or doubtful parts or complete components with new parts of similar manufacture.

Prior to beginning any repair or replacement outside the scope of preventative maintenance work, Contractor will troubleshoot the system to diagnose the system's problems. The Park District shall not incur any extra charge for this service. Contractor shall provide a quote to the Park District prior to any and all repairs and component replacements. Repairs and component replacements will not begin without authorization in the form of a Purchase Order from the Director of Parks & Properties or their authorized designee, unless the service call is considered an emergency as defined in Section III. Time, on the following page. The Park District reserves the right to obtain additional work quotes and service from trade companies other than the successful bidder for repair and component replacement work and materials. The cost of repairs for labor will be paid per the fees as annotated on the Contractor's Bid Form.

Parts and component replacement shall be invoiced at Contractor's cost plus the percentage for profit and handling as annotated on the Contractor's Bid Form. The Park District reserves the right to audit Contractor's invoices at its sole discretion. Contractor shall make available to Park District any requested invoice showing what Contractor paid for the part/component, within three (3) business days of request or Park District shall not be obligated to pay for the part/component.

Contractor shall only invoice the Park District for the time spent on the property. Park District shall not pay for time spent in route or traveling to acquire parts/supplies. Invoices and service reports shall show arrival and departure times to and from the property of all Contractors and employees responding for service.

Contractor shall minimize overstaffing for minor repairs. If Contractor is found to be overstaffing for repairs, based upon customary trade practices, Park District reserves the right to only pay the fees for customary trade practices.

- b. The Contractor shall not be required to make replacements or repairs necessitated by reason of negligence or misuse of the equipment by other than the Contractor's employees, or by reason of any other cause beyond the Contractor's control.
- 4. The Contractor shall be free to start and stop equipment as necessary, but in doing so shall not cause interference with the Owner's operations. Contractor shall notify, and be granted permission by Owner, prior to any start/stop of equipment.

III. Time

1. Preventative Maintenance Service Schedule and Repair Service Calls

- a. Preventative Maintenance Within fourteen (14) days after notice that the bid has been awarded, the Contractor shall supply to the Owner a written preventative maintenance service schedule specifying the dates when the various items of Work are to be completed. Such schedule shall be strictly adhered to. All Work shall be prosecuted in an orderly and diligent manner. The Contractor shall cooperate with and conform to the requests of the Owner to expedite particular portions of the work where such alteration of the Contractor's operation is deemed advisable by the Owner. The Contractor shall notify the Park District authorized designee anytime the successful contractor or representatives come on site. The Contractor shall provide identification when entering Park District facilities.
- b. Repair Service Calls The Contractor shall have a dispatcher available at a specified single phone number twenty-four (24) hours a day and shall provide prompt response to service calls on a 24 hour/day, 7 day-a-week basis. If the Owner notifies the Contractor that such service call is in the nature of an emergency, the Contractor shall begin actual remedial work within two (2) hours after receipt of such notification. If the Contractor fails to respond in the allotted time without notification, the Park District shall have the right to contact another firm to address the problem at the Contractor's expense. Remedial work on non-emergency service calls shall commence within twenty-four (24) hours after notification or as the Owner directs. Unless otherwise directed by the Owner, all non-emergency service will be performed during regular working hours. For the purpose of this specification, an emergency condition exists when covered systems and equipment cause or contribute to interference with Owner's operations, risk to property, or risk to the health and safety of Park District employees.

2. Delays

If the Contractor is delayed in the prosecution of the preventative maintenance service schedule or in response to a service call, by any act or neglect of the Owner, or by strikes, fire, lock-outs, unavoidable casualties or any cause beyond the Contractor's control, then the time of service will be extended for a reasonable time, such reasonable time as the Owner shall decide.

- a. Preventative Maintenance Within five (5) days from the beginning of any delay to the preventative maintenance service schedule, the Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing of the cause of delay, and therein, specify the number of days of extension requested.
- b. Service Call Within two (2) hours from the beginning of any such delay to a service call, the Contractor shall notify the Owner or its designated representative by phone of the cause of delay and the period of extension requested.

Requests for preventative maintenance or service call extension may, at the Owner's discretion, be denied and the Contractor shall perform the work requested as set forth in this section of the Scope of Services of this Agreement. If such requests are not made as herein provided, it shall be deemed waived and the Contractor shall be construed to be in breach of this agreement. Unless of an extraordinary and exceptional nature, weather conditions shall not be a justifiable cause for delay.

3. Service Reports

At the conclusion of all preventative maintenance service, inspections and all work specified in Schedule B, Contractor shall provide a written report for the Owner's approval detailing the work completed. The written report must include hours and date of performance, the service technician(s) who performed the work, description of work performed, and itemized description of any parts and materials used per each specific piece of equipment receiving preventative maintenance.

At the conclusion of each service call, Contractor shall provide a written report for the Owner's approval detailing the work performed in the form of a service report; the hours and date of performance, the service technician(s) who performed the work, description of work performed, and itemized description of parts and materials used.

No less than monthly, the Contractor shall meet with the Owner's Representative on the Owner's premises to detail performance on the work and to report on compliance or non-compliance with the preventative maintenance service schedule and service call. If in the opinion of the Owner, the Contractor has fallen behind the service schedule, the Contractor shall take such steps as may be deemed necessary by the Owner to improve progress.

IV. Action Performance

1. Superintendence

The Contractor shall give personal superintendence to the Work.

2. Materials and Workmanship – Quality

a. Materials – Unless otherwise specifically called for in the Contract Documents/ Specifications, the equipment, materials and articles incorporated in the Work covered by this Agreement shall be new (not refurbished) and specified by the manufacturer or approved equivalents and of the best grade and consistent with standard specifications. When called for by the Owner, the Contractor shall, at no cost, furnish to the Owner for approval, full information concerning the materials, equipment or articles to be incorporated in the Work, including reasonable or test results when requested.

b. Workmanship - All Work performed shall be performed and accomplished in a first class and workmanship manner to the satisfaction of the Owner and in accordance with the best practice standards, and standard specifications recognized in the field.

3. Materials and Workmanship – Guarantee

The Contractor guarantees the equipment, materials, articles and workmanship used or performed in the Work to be free from defects, suitable for the purpose intended and merchantable. Contractor shall correct defective work and replace defective materials at his own cost which becomes apparent within one (1) year from the date such defective work or materials should have been reasonably discovered.

4. Existing Materials

All existing materials and equipment removed under this Contract shall remain the property of the Owner and shall be stored, removed or protected by the Contractor as directed by the Owner.

5. Cleaning Up

The Contractor shall, at all times, keep the site free from accumulations of waste materials or rubbish caused by his employees or the Work, and at the completion of the Work, he shall remove all his rubbish, tools, equipment and surplus materials from the site, and shall leave work clean and ready for use. In case of dispute, the Owner may remove the rubbish and surplus materials and charge the cost to the Contractor.

6. Starting in Operation – Major Repairs and Component Replacement

Where required, the Contractor shall furnish a skilled operator to adjust and start all of the equipment installed and to place it in successful operation. After the equipment installed has been satisfactorily adjusted, the operator shall instruct the Owner's operators as to the proper methods of starting, adjusting and caring for the equipment furnished and installed under the Specifications.

V. Safety and Protection

1. Protection of Work

The Contractor shall continuously maintain adequate protection of all the Work from damage and shall protect the Owner's and adjacent property from injury arising in connection with this Contract.

2. Care of Existing Property

All sewer, water, gas or other pipes, wires, equipment, structures and other property shall be supported and protected from injury by the Contractor during the Work performed under this Contract. The Contractor shall be liable for all damage to such structures and property and shall save and keep the said Owner harmless from any liability or expense for injuries, damages or repairs to same.

3. Accident Prevention

The Contractor shall execute all reasonable precaution at all times for the protection of all persons and property and shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property, either on or off the site, which occur as a result of the Contractor's fault or negligence in connection with

the prosecution of the Work. Termination of the Contract shall not be deemed a waiver of Contractor's responsibility. The safety provisions of applicable laws and building and construction codes shall be observed and the Contractor shall take or cause to be taken such additional safety and health measures as the Owner may determine to be reasonably necessary.

VI. Subcontractors

1. No Contractual Relationship

Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationships between any Subcontractor and the Owner.

2. Applicability of Contract Documents

The Contractor agrees to bind every Subcontractor (and every subcontractor of a subcontractor) and every Subcontractor agrees to be bound by the terms of the Contract Documents as far as applicable to his work, unless specifically noted to the contrary in a subcontract approved in writing as adequate by the Owner.

3. Responsibility of Contractor

The Contractor agrees to be fully responsible to the Owner for the acts or omissions of his subcontractors and of anyone employed directly or indirectly by him or them and this Contract obligation shall be in addition to the liability imposed by law upon the Contractor.

VII. Inspection/Correction

1. Rejection

The Owner shall have the right to reject materials and workmanship which are defective or require correction.

Rejected workmanship shall be satisfactorily corrected and rejected materials shall be removed from the premises, both without charge to the Owner. If the Contractor does not correct such defective work and remove rejected materials within a reasonable time, fixed by written notice, the Owner may remove them and charge the expense to the Contractor.

2. Inspection After Completion

Should it be considered necessary or advisable by the Owner at any time before acceptance of the Work to make an examination of work already completed, by removing or tearing out same, the Contractor shall on request promptly furnish all necessary facilities, labor and materials for that purpose, and the costs thereof, shall be charged to the Contractor if the Work was covered prior to inspection by the Owner.

3. No Waiver by Inspection or Payment

Neither the inspection of or payment for any provision in the Contract documents shall relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for negligence or faulty materials or workmanship within the extent and period provided by law and, upon written notice, and he shall remove any defects due therefrom.

4. Decision of Owner

The signage of the Contract for the Work shall be considered the Contractor's agreement to accept the Owner's decision as final in all matters of workmanship and performance hereunder.

VIII. Additional Performance Security

1. Termination

- a. In the event the Contractor voluntarily petitions for bankruptcy, or is adjudged bankrupt or makes a general assignment for the benefit of his creditors or if a receiver is appointed on account of his insolvency, or in the event that any of the provisions of the Contract Documents are violated by the Contractor or by any of his Subcontractors or the Owner reasonably believes such violation is likely, the Owner may serve written notice upon the Contractor of the intention to terminate the Agreement. Such notice shall contain the reasons for such intent to terminate the Agreement. Unless within five (5) days after the serving of such notice upon the Contractor such violation shall cease and arrangements satisfactory to the Owner for correction be made, the Agreement shall upon expiration of said five (5) days cease and terminate with no further notice. The Owner may take over the Work and prosecute the completion of same at the expense of the Contractor, and the Contractor shall be liable to the Owner for any excess cost occasioned to the Owner thereby, and in such event, the Owner may take possession of and utilize in completing the Work, such materials and equipment including those of the Contractor as may be on the site of the Work and necessary therefore.
- **b.** In the event of termination, the Contractor shall pay to the Owner, all costs over and above the contract price expended by the Owner in the completion of the Work and this obligation shall survive the termination of the Agreement. Such payment shall not preclude or waive the Owner's entitlement to additional damages or be construed as an election of remedies.

2. Owner's Right to Withhold Certain Amounts and Make Application Thereof

In addition to the payments to be retained by the Owner under the other provisions of these Special Conditions, the Owner may withhold a sufficient amount of any payment otherwise due to the Contractor to cover the following:

- (1) For claims arising in and from the performance of service under this contract.
- (2) For defective Work not remedied.
- (3) For failure of the Contractor or Subcontractors to make proper payments to his Subcontractors and suppliers. The Owner shall have the right to act as agent for the Contractor in disbursing such funds as have been withheld pursuant to this paragraph to the party or parties who are entitled to payment therefrom.

The Owner will render to the Contractor a proper accounting of all such funds disbursed on behalf of the Contractor, and such payments shall be considered as payment made under the Contract.

IX. Changes

1. Changes in Scope of Work

The Owner may change the covered systems and equipment on any of the equipment listed in Schedule "A." The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional compensation under the terms of this Contract because of such changes unless such changes result in a ten (10) percent or more increase in the volume of preventative maintenance and service call requirements. If such increase is documented by the Contractor and to the satisfaction of the Owner over a two (2) month period of time, then the parties shall negotiate an increase in compensation hereunder, required to compensate the Contractor for such increase for the term of this Contract remaining after such documentation is presented. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall change any other of the terms or conditions contained in this Contract.

In addition, the Owner may elect to remove an entire building or portion of a building as identified by individual lines on the bid form in the event a facility is planned for renovation. The Owner will provide as much notice as possible. If facilities are removed, the monthly rate annotated on the Bid Form will be the basis for payment adjustment.

2. Waiver

The Contractor, hereby, waives any compensation for any change in the Work which is not authorized as provided for herein.

X. Payments

1. Payments by the Owner

The Contractor shall bill Owner for the monthly service fee for the Work specified in these Contract Documents the first of the month following the month for which the service was performed. Terms for payment are governed by the Local Government Prompt Payment Act, 50 ILCS 505/1, et.seq., unless as otherwise modified by the Contract Documents.

2. No Waiver

Neither by partial or final payment will the Owner be deemed to have waived any remedy for defective work or negligence on the part of the Contractor or any other portion of the Contract which by its nature survives after the time of final payment.

END OF SECTION

BASE BID SPECIFICATIONS - COVERED EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE A

		Joe	e Doud Administratio	n Building		
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
2016	A/C	TRANE	INTELLIPAK SAHLF4O4OP45CMLD 8001AOWEOHOOAOO2	C16HO5635	Roof	1
2011	A/C SERVER ROOM	LIEBERT	PFH037A-YL7	Y11GG11935	Roof/Computer room	1
1994	ROOFTOP	REZNOR	RDF2-120	ATB61K2NO7865/CA/MV7	Roof	1
1994	ROOFTOP	REZNOR	RDF2-120	ATB61K2NO7866/CA/MV7	Roof	1
1994	BOILER	WEIL McLAIN #1	488	88 Boiler Gas	Boiler Room	1
1994	BOILER	WEIL McLAIN #2	488	88 Boiler Gas	Boiler Room	1
1994	(3) CIRCULATION PUMP W/MOTORS	B & G	185011	unreadable	Boiler Room	3
1994	CARTRIDGE CIRCULATOR	TACO	0011-F2	N/A	Washbay & Service garage floor heat	1
2014	ICE MACHINE	MANITOWOC	IY0304A-161 BIN=B-400	1101245092 1101289486	Parks Kitchen	1

		L	eisure Center Roof To	op Units		
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
2012	AC Unit	TRANE	4TTB3036D1000BA	12224MEH3F	North front of building	1
Not in use	DUCT HEATER (W)	REZNOR	HCRG75-7-SMV	EAWH66M8N50046MV3	Roof	Х
Not in use	DUCT HEATER (E)	REZNOR	CRG300-7-S-MV	EAWH66K1N50045MV3	Roof	Х
2012	RTU #1 GYM	TRANE	YHC120E4RHA0JD0C	122510967L	Roof	1
2012	RTU #2 COSTUME SHOP	TRANE	YHC048F4RMA0302C	123410153L	Roof	1
2012	RTU #3 THEATRE LOBBY	TRANE	YHC092F4RHA0300C	123410634L	Roof	1
2012	RTU #4 THEATRE	TRANE	YCH480B4TJ0B3	C12E03627	Roof	1
2012	RTU #5 LITTLE THEATRE	TRANE	YHC120E4RHA0JD0C	122510963L	Roof	1
2012	RTU #6 PROP SHOP	TRANE	YCD181F4HAAB	122610069D	Roof	1
2012	RTU #8 WEST VAV	TRANE	YCD330B4HJ1B2EC4A	C12E03607	Roof	1
2012	RTU #9 EAST VAV	TRANE	YCD330B4HJ1B2EC4A	C12E03606	Roof	1
2012	MAKE UP AIR UNIT MAU #1	GREENHECK	DGK-109-H15-01-DB	12895348	Roof	1
2012	ELECTRIC HEATER	TRANE	GAF2A0A36531SAA	12204NRE2V	Basement	1

	Leisure Center Boiler Room								
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY			
2012	BOILER 1	LOCHINVAR	KBN501	D12H10212834	Boiler Room	1			
2012	BOILER 2	LOCHINVAR	KBN501	D12H10212819	Boiler Room	1			
2012	BOILER PUMP & MOTOR #1	BELL & GOSSETT	LQD56A17D58F	D12K190079	Boiler Room	1			
2012	BOILER PUMP & MOTOR #2	BELL & GOSSETT	LQD56A17D58F	D12K190086	Boiler Room	1			
2012	CIRCULATING PUMP & MOTOR #3	BELL & GOSSETT	PUMP: C151726 MOTOR: LVA56T17D5598D	02G21	Boiler Room	1			
2012	CIRCULATING PUMP & MOTOR #4	BELL & GOSSETT	PUMP: C151726 MOTOR: LVA56T17D5598D	01G21	Boiler Room	1			
2012	VFD PUMP #3	DANFOSS	FC-102	000323H382	Boiler Room East wall	1			
2012	VFD PUMP #4	DANFOSS	FC-102	00423H382	Boiler Room South wall	1			

	Leisure Center Kitchen										
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL #	LOCATION	QTY					
	1 DOOR FREEZER	TRUE	T-12F	5141851	Kitchen	1					
	2 DOOR REFRIGERATOR	TRUE	T-49	6567018	Kitchen	1					
	ICE MACHINE	HOSHIZAKI	KM-151BAH	B07638E	Kitchen	1					

	Meadowhill Aquatic Center - Concessions									
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY				
Not available	FREEZER DOUBLE DOORS	MANITOWOC	FS2	940880061	Concessions	1				
Not available	REFRIGERATOR/FREEZER	CONTINENTAL	2R-SA-PT	15184630	Concessions	1				

		Meado	whill Aquatic C	enter		
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
2015	AIR CONDITIONING UNIT – FAN COIL	CARRIER	FX4DNB061 TOO	3814U05094	Concessions	1
2015	AIR CONDITIONING – CONDENSER	CARRIER	24ABB360A005	1515E09104	Concessions	1
2015	ICE MACHINE	MANITOWOC	IY0304A-161 BIN=B-400	1120029764 1120041336	Concessions	1
2021	POOL HEATER Lap/Dive Pools	RAYPAK	P-3001	2102518647	Pool Filter Room	1
2021	POOL HEATER Children's Pool	RAYPAK	P-1223A	2102518376	Pool Filter Room	1
2021	POOL HEATER Slide Splash Pool	RAYPAK	B-R336A-EN-X ASME	2101516893	Pool Filter Room	1
2006	FURNACE	CARRIER	580LA155-20	1806A21542	Water Heater Room	1
2006	FURNACE	CARRIER	580LA155-20	1806A21531	East storage, attic access area	1

	Heritage Oaks Golf Club – Clubhouse											
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY						
2021	RTU #1	Carrier	48A9W035AP654 AER	482OU44857	Roof	1						
2021	MAU #1	Carrier	62X712-GKC- AGG-UV	O521VO2906	Roof	1						
2021	Boiler #1	Lochinvar	KBN 400	112619F1055871	Room 107	1						

	Heritage Oaks Golf Club – Halfway House										
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY					
2000	DISPLAY REFRIGERATOR	DELFIELD	7048-P	304100-T	Halfway House	Contractor to provide					
2013	HEATER/AIR CONDITIONER	CARRIER	40QAQ024-301	0913V32557	Halfway House	1					
2013	OUTSIDE CONDENSER	CARRIER	38QRR024-301	1313X90285	Halfway House	1					

	Heritage Oaks Golf Club – Maintenance Building											
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL #	LOCATION	QTY						
2006	GAS FIRED BURNER	VANTAGE 2	CTH 2-80	0302-030-080-0081	Maintenance shop	1						
2006	(11) GAS FIRED BURNERS	CoRayVac	CRV-B-8	0406-027-080-0014		1						
2006	Pump	RG	EP201	0409-001-0021 SN: not readable on 2 nd	Loft	1						
2006	FURNACE	GAMA	58MCA100-16	2404A14601	Parts loft	1						
2006	CONDENSER	CARRIER	38CKC048370	3904E11207	In front of building	1						

			Northbrook Sports Center			
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
2018	RTU #1 LOCKER ROOMS 1-4	TRANE	YHC092F4RHA2JJB	183611849L	Roof	1
2018	RTU #2 SKATE SHOP	TRANE	YHC048F4RMA3AD3	183610400L	Roof	1
2016	RTU #3 B LOBBY	TRANE	YHD210G4RHA2NRQ	163810431D	Roof	1
2021	RTU #4 GARAGE	TRANE	YHC047E4RYA25K6C1A1A6B00E0100C0	211611414L	Roof	1
2021	RTU #5 MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM	TRANE	YHC092F4RZA25K6C1A1A6B0AE0100D1	211710457L	Roof	1
2016	RTU #6 HALL OF FAME HALLWAY	TRANE	YSC102F4RHA2GPT	161011520L	Roof	1
2021	RTU #7 SOUTH OFFICES	TRANE	YHC047E4RYA25K6C1A1A6B00E0100C0	211814729L	Roof	1
2021	RTU #8 NORTH OFFICES	TRANE	YHC037E4RYA25K6C1A1A6B00E0100B0	211711289L	Roof	1
2021	RTU #9 LOCKER RMS 7-8	TRANE	YHC047E4RYA25K6C1A1A6B00E0100C0	211814747L	Roof	1
2017	RTU #10 POOL MANAGER OFFICE	TRANE	YSC048G4RMA2YCN	173110633L	Roof	1
2012	RTU #11 COMMUNITY ROOM	TRANE	TCH181F300AB	123211645D	Roof	1
2021	MAU #2 LOCKER RMS 5-6	TRANE	GRAA25P	E2101796601001001	Roof	1
2021	MAU #3 POOL LOCKER ROOMS	TRANE	GRAA35P	E2101796501002001	Roof	1
2021	MAU #4	CAPTIVE AIR	A1-15D	23419	Concessions	1

Northbrook Sports Center – A RINK						
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
Pre-1999	AIR HANDLER MAU#1	TRANE	T-8/3 HP	K134015	Storage Room	1
1999	HEATING COIL CEILING	TRANE		N/A	Community Room	1
1999	AUXILLARY CIRCULATING PUMP	B & G	½ HP	M09181	A Boiler Room	1
2017	BOILER #01	Viessman	Vitocrossal 300 CA3 2.5	7742368701025103	A Boiler Room	2
2017	CIRCULATING PUMP & MOTOR #01 VARIABLE SPEED BUILDING PUMP	B&G	1202966206	X1707CH7209	A Boiler Room	1
2017	CIRCULATING PUMP & MOTOR #02 VARIABLE SPEED BOILER LOOP PUMP	US MOTOR	U32P2DC		A Boiler Room	1
2017	EXPANSION TANK	B&G	B200	361970	A Boiler Room	1
2017	HOT WATER STORAGE TANKS (N) (HEAT EXCHANGER)	VIESSMAN	Vitocell 300-V EVI 450		A Boiler Room	1
2017	HOT WATER STORAGE TANKS (S) (HEAT EXCHANGER)	VIESSMAN	Vitocell 300-V EVI 450		A Boiler Room	1
2017	DOMESTIC HOT WATER PUMP & MOTOR #1	B&G	M055PWFPD-1680		A Boiler Room	1
2017	DOMESTIC HOT WATER PUMP & MOTOR #2	B&G	M055PWFPD-1680		A Boiler Room	1

	Northbrook Sports Center – B RINK					
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
2016	CIRCULATING PUMP #07	B & G	1/6 HP F90	189105	B Boiler Room	1
2016	HOT WATER HEATER (03)	NILES/LAARS	PNCV0750NACK2BJN	C 15 271020	B Boiler Room	1
2016	CIRCULATION PUMP & MOTOR FOR HEATER (03)	TACO TACO/US MOTOR	HPL-33L-B 3.62 PN 180-258 S55JXPMU8258	1/3 HP	B Boiler Room	1
2016	HOT WATER HEATER (04)	NILES/LAARS	PNCV0750NACK2BJN	C 15 271019	B Boiler Room	1
2016	CIRCULATION PUMP & MOTOR FOR HEATER (04)	TACO TACO/US MOTOR	HPL-33L-B 3.62 PN 180-258 S55JXPMU8258	1/3 HP	B Boiler Room	1
2019	HOT WATER STORAGE TANK (01)	NILES/LAARS	CTVGB30-111	111683-02	B Boiler Room	1
2019	HOT WATER STORAGE TANK (02)	NILES/LAARS	CTVGB30-111	111683-01	B Boiler Room	1
2019	EXPANSION TANK	AMTROL	ST80VC	412401	B Boiler Room	1
1999	MARK AIRDOOR	BERNER AIR DOORS	MKII-3-108	N/A	B Lobby Entrance	1

	Northbrook Sports Center Concessions Stand – B RINK LOBBY						
INSTALLED	NSTALLED EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURER MODEL SERIAL# LOCATION QTY						
2023	REFRIGERATOR	TRUE	T-43-HC	10649054	Concessions	1	
2014	ICE MACHINE	MANITOWOC	IYO304A-161	1101140020	Concessions	1	
	REFRIGERATOR 2 DOOR CONDIMENT	RANDELL	9110	J2934 192393	Concessions	1	
2023	FREEZER	TRUE	T-43F-HC	10704992	Concessions	1	

	Northbrook Sports Center Pool – Pool Filtration Room					
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
2017	Boiler – 01 Leisure Pool	LOCHINVAR	CPN20	1650104200606	Pool filter room	1
2017	RECIRCULATION PUMP & MOTOR ON BOILER - 01	BALDOR	CAT# VL3504 SPEC:34C63-5422	N/A	Pool filter building	1
2017	Boiler – 02 Dive Pool	LOCHINVAR	CPN0992	1650104200598	Pool filter room	1
2017	RECIRCULATION PUMP & MOTOR ON BOILER - 02	BALDOR	CAT# VL3507 SPEC:34G452Y094	N/A	Pool filter building	1

Techny Prairie Activity Center						
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
2020	RTU #1	Trane	Horizon ASHP-N360	GA297259-2-1	Roof – Penthouse	1
2020	RTU #2	Trane	Horizon ASHP-K300	OA297259-3-1	Roof – Penthouse	1
2020	RTU #3	Trane	Horizon ASHP-N360	OA297259-4-1	Roof – Penthouse	1
2020	DOAS Dedicated Outside Air Unit	Trane	Horizon ASHP-B036	OA297259-1-1	Roof – Penthouse	1
2020	Infrared Bulb Heaters IBH	Broan	163	NA	Room 126, 127	4
2020	Condensing Unit CU-1	Mitsubishi	TURYH0964AN40AN	9ZW000487GFVB6	Roof – Penthouse	1
2020	Natural Gas Humidifier	Nortec	GS150-CS	20G0100006	Storage 204	1
2020	Duct Free Split System Indoor Unit	Mitsubishi	PKA-A18HA7	9XA20399A	Room 106	1
2020	Duct Free Split System Outdoor Unit	Mitsubishi	PUY-A18NKA7	9YU14555A	Roof – Penthouse	1
2020	Refrigerator	TRUE	T-19-HC	10027072	Kitchen	1
2020	Freezer	TRUE	T-19F-HC	10030574	Kitchen	1

Village Green Center						
INSTALLED	EQUIPMENT	MANUFACTURER	MODEL	SERIAL#	LOCATION	QTY
1999	2 PACKAGE HEATING/COOLING UNIT	YORK	D2NA060N11025D	NORTH UNIT- NEMM054929	Roof	1
				SOUTH UNIT- NEMM074705	Roof	1
1999	1 PACKAGE HEATING/COOLING UNIT	YORK	DM120N20S2AAA3A	NFMM069390	Roof	1
2009	GAS FIRED BOILER	LOCHINVAR	KBN285	H09H10102008	Boiler room	1
	(2) FAN COIL UNITS (tied to boiler)				Bathroom ceilings	2
2016	BOILER PUMP	B & G	PL-50	1BL016	Boiler Room	1
Not avail	PUMP	EMERSON	555JXTHH-7892	LR63596E22922	Boiler Room	1
Not avail	PUMP	B & G	M10711	NOT LEGIBLE	Boiler Room	1
Not avail	PUMP	B & G	M10711	189165LF	Boiler Room	1

BASE BID - SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEDULE "B"

Contractor will perform periodic preventative maintenance as follows:

- 3 Inspection calls per year on Air Conditioning Equipment
- 2 Inspection calls per year on Refrigeration Equipment
- 2 Inspection calls per year on Heating Equipment

Preventative Maintenance Inspection for all items in Schedule A Includes

- 1. Lubrication of all moving parts
- 2. Check and adjust operating temperatures and pressures
- 3. Check and adjust all belts; replace if worn
- 4. Check and adjust operating and safety controls
- 5. Check electrical components note any damaged or frayed wires
- 6. Measure voltage and amperage drawn
- 7. Check for refrigerant leaks; make repairs as needed and add refrigerant
- 8. Provide report upon completion of inspection
- 9. Inspect equipment drains and condensate pans and coil for clogging and deterioration; recommend any needed action
- 10. Inspect door gaskets for deterioration and leakage; replace where needed; recommend any needed action
- 11. Spring start up and Fall pump down of air conditioning
- 12. Furnish seasonal changeover on heating equipment
- 13. Make recommendations to Equipment Owner for any necessary work not covered by this Agreement

HEATING SEASON START-UP

Main HVAC Systems & Backroom Space Heaters

- 1. Pump down and seal off AC systems
- 2. Disconnect power to compressors
- 3. De-energize crankcase heaters
- 4. Check all Freezstat controls, calibrate as necessary
- 5. Drain all chilled water coils
- 6. Check condition of heat exchanger, clean and vacuum as necessary
- 7. Check all belts and pulleys, replace or adjust/align as necessary
- 8. Lubricate all bearings, air handler, blower motor and combustion air motor where applicable
- 9. Check all safety switches
- 10. Check burners, clean as necessary
- 11. Check for proper operation and light off of burners
- 12. Check condition of electrical wiring for frayed or chewed wires, check connections for corrosion
- 13. Check for gas leaks, repair leaks as necessary
- 14. Check oil nozzle/cartridge on oil systems
- 15. Check and clean pump screen on oil systems
- 16. Check operation of barometric draft diverter on oil systems
- 17. Check all panels, tighten and secure as necessary
- 18. Check for obstructions to supply and return grilles, remove obstructions as necessary
- 19. Check condition of thermostats or accustats as appropriate set to 68 F. daytime heating
- 20. Check temperature difference across heat exchangers, adjust so that it is within manufacturers/AGA Plate specifications
- 21. Check all motor amperages and operation
- 22. Check for minimum position of fresh air dampers, adjust as necessary
- 23. Check and clean make up air filters if applicable

Boiler Systems

- 1. Drain and flush boiler, clean mud legs if applicable
- 2. Check and clean low water cut offs-(includes taking the units apart and removing corrosion and sediment Deposits)
- 3. Check and adjust if necessary all pressure/temperature controls
- 4. Check all valves including check and pressure relief valves
- 5. Check and clean condensate traps and pumps as necessary
- 6. Check radiator traps on two way pipe systems and relief valves on one way systems and radiator valves for workability
- 7. On hot water systems where circulating pumps exist, check and oil pump as necessary
- 8. On hot water systems drain expansion tank, vent unnecessary air from system
- 9. On Lochinvar pool heaters at Sports Center pool, inspect flow switch prior to each pool season

Freezer Cases, Beverage Coolers and Ice Chests

Check operation of head pressure controls if applicable

COOLING SEASON START-UP

Main HVAC Systems

- 1. Energize crankcase heaters
- 2. Check refrigerant charges, add refrigerant as necessary locate and repair leak or leaks (continuing system leaks will <u>not</u> be acceptable)
- 3. Check oil pressure and levels, add oil as necessary note: before adding oil to system confirm that oil has actually leaked out of the system
- 4. Check all safety controls and relays
- 5. Check condenser fans and motors
- 6. Check condition of compressors
- 7. Check motor amperages
- 8. Lubricate all bearings, air handler, blower motor and condenser motors where applicable
- 9. Check line filters
- 10. Check condition of electrical wiring for frayed or chewed wires, check connections for corrosion
- 11. Check all belts and pulleys replace or adjust as necessary
- 12. Check proper operation of economizer/OA dampers
- 13. Inspect and clean drain lines, pans and coils
- 14. Check set screws and drives on blowers
- 15. Turn off furnace and boiler pilot lights
- 16. Check all panels, tighten and secure as necessary
- 17. Check for obstructions to supply and return grilles, remove obstructions as necessary
- 18. Check condition of thermostats or accustats as appropriate set to 76 F. daytime cooling
- 19. Tighten all Schrader valves and valve caps, replacing seals as necessary
- 20. Tighten all compressor service valve stem seals and caps where applicable, replacing seals as necessary

MID-SEASON HEATING CHECK

Main HVAC Systems & Backroom Space Heaters

- 1. Check all safety switches
- 2. Check pilot and ignition
- 3. Check all belts and pulleys, replace or adjust as necessary
- 4. Check for gas leaks, repair leaks as necessary
- 5. Check all panels, tighten and secure as necessary
- 6. Check for obstructions to supply and return grilles, remove obstructions as necessary
- 7. Check condition of thermostats or accustats as appropriate set to 68 F. daytime heating

Freezer Cases, Beverage Coolers and Ice Chests

- 1. Check condenser coils, clean as necessary
- 2. Check sight glass for moisture, advise Park District Representative if it shows positive
- 3. Check electrical connections for frayed or chewed wires, check connections for corrosion, tighten as necessary
- 4. Check temperature controls, calibrate as necessary
- 5. Check lubrication of fans and bearings, lubricate as necessary
- 6. Check oil level, add oil as necessary
- 7. Check refrigerant level, add refrigerant as necessary
- 8. Check supply and return air grilles are free and unobstructed, correct if necessary
- 9. Check temperature difference across water cooled condensers, adjust water valves as necessary
- 10. Check operation of head pressure controls if applicable

MID-SEASON COOLING CHECK

Main HVAC Systems

- 1. Check refrigerant charges, add refrigerant as necessary locate and repair leak(s) (continuing system leaks will not be acceptable)
- 2. Check all safety controls and relays
- 3. Check motor amperages
- 4. Check condition of all coil surfaces, clean as necessary
- 5. Check all belts and pulleys, replace or adjust as necessary
- 6. Check proper operation of economizer/OA dampers
- 7. Check all panels, tighten and secure as necessary
- 8. Check for obstructions to supply and return grilles, remove obstructions as necessary
- 9. Check condition of thermostats or accustats set to 76 F. daytime cooling

Freezer Cases, Beverage Coolers and Ice Chests

- 1. Check condenser coils, clean as necessary
- 2. Check sight glass for moisture
- 3. Check electrical connections for frayed or chewed wires, check connections for corrosion, tighten as necessary
- 4. Check temperature controls, calibrate as necessary
- 5. Check lubrication of fans and bearings, lubricate as necessary
- 6. Check oil level, add oil as necessary
- 7. Check refrigerant level, add refrigerant as necessary locate and repair leak(s) (continuing system leaks will not be acceptable)
- 8. Check supply and return air grilles are free and unobstructed, correct if necessary
- 9. Check temperature difference across water cooled condensers, adjust water valves as necessary

END OF SECTION

PROJECT LOCATIONS

This service contract encompasses the following locations.

- 1. Joe Doud Administration Building 545 Academy Drive
- 2. Heritage Oaks Golf Club Maintenance Building 3401 Dundee Road
- 3. Heritage Oaks Golf Club Halfway House 3535 Dundee Road
- 4. Heritage Oaks Golf Club Clubhouse, Range Service Building 3535 Dundee Road
- 5. Leisure Center 3323 Walters Avenue
- 6. Meadowhill Aquatic Center 1501 Maple Avenue
- 7. Northbrook Sports Center and Pool 1730 Pfingsten Road
- 8. Techny Prairie Activity Center 180 Anets Drive
- 9. Village Green Center 1810 Walters Avenue

HVAC SERVICES AGREEMENT

This HVAC Services Agreement (the "Agreement"), made this 1st day of June, 20	24, by and
between the Northbrook Park District, an Illinois park district (the "Park District"	t") with its
principal place of business at 545 Academy Drive, Northbrook, Illinois, and	_, an Illinois
corporation (the "Contractor"), with its principal place of business at	Illinois,
collectively referred to as the "Parties" or individually as "Party."	

WITNESSETH

That the Park District and Contractor, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as follows:

1. Labor and Materials

The Contractor shall provide all labor, equipment and materials required to complete the following work: HVAC Services (the "Work"), as indicated in the plans and specifications in the Project Manual for HVAC Services – All Buildings, Bid 2264, dated February 29, 2024, attached to and incorporated as part of this Agreement as **Exhibit A** (the "Project Manual").

2. Contract Documents

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement between the Park District and the Contractor, the Invitation to Bid, Instruction to Bidders, General Information, Scope of Services, Schedule A and B of the Project Manual, Contractor's Bid Form dated March 21, 2024 and attached to and incorporated as part of this Agreement as **Exhibit B**, Contractor's Certification, attached to and incorporated as part of this Agreement as **Exhibit B**, any addenda issued prior to the execution of this Agreement and any modifications issued after the execution of this Agreement. Modifications to this Agreement may only be made in writing and endorsed by the Parties. All of the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the Project Manual are incorporated herein.

3. Term

The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year, commencing on June 1, 2024 and expiring on May 31, 2025, unless terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of this Agreement (the "Term"). This Agreement may be renewed up to two (2), one-year extensions to the contract.

4. Performance of Work; Warranty

Contractor agrees to perform all Work in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall not interfere in any way with and shall cooperate fully with other contractors used by Park District for any other work at the Project site.

Contractor agrees to provide a one-year warranty on the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

5. Extras

No claim for extras shall be allowed unless such claim shall be first submitted in writing to the Park District and approved in writing by an authorized agent of the Park District.

6. Contract Sum

The Park District agrees to pay Contractor for the proper and timely performance of the **Preventative Maintenance Work** in strict accordance with the Agreement as follows:

Year 1: \$0 and 00/100 (\$0.00) per month (June 1, 2024 – May 31, 2025)

Labor Rates for Repairs & Component Replacement and Parts & Materials Cost

LABOR Business Hours of 7:00am – 4:00pm	HOURLY RATE
Lead Technician (Supervisor/Foreman)	\$
Apprentice	\$
Laborer	\$
Electrician	\$

LABOR After Hours of 4:00pm – 7:00am, weekends and Park District holidays	HOURLY RATE
Lead Technician (Supervisor/Foreman)	\$
Apprentice	\$
Laborer	\$
Electrician	\$

PARTS & MATERIALS Contractor's Percentage of Mark-Up for Parts & Materials	PERCENTAGE
Mark up shall not exceed 10%	10%

7. Payment

Payment shall be made by the Park District to the Contractor upon the Park District's receipt of a monthly invoice itemizing the Work properly performed, as determined by the Park District, for the period covered by the invoice. Payments of all invoices, and any late payment penalties, shall be governed by the Local Government Prompt Payment Act (5 ILCS 505/1 et seq.). The Park District shall have the right to withhold payment in accordance with Section VIII of the General Conditions.

8. Cleaning Up

The Contractor shall keep the project site and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by operations under the Agreement in accordance with Section IV of the Scope of Services.

9. Safety of Persons and Property

In addition to the terms set forth in Section V of the Scope of Services:

- A. The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for the health and safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
 - 1. employees engaged in the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; and
 - 2. the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, under care, custody or control of the Contractor or the Contractor's Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors.
- B. The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on safety of persons or property or their protection from damage, injury or loss.
- C. The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Agreement, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities.

- D. When the Contractor uses or stores hazardous materials or equipment or unusual methods are necessary for execution of the Work, Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under supervision of properly qualified personnel.
- E. The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss to the site of the Work caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible, except damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the Park District or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Park District, or by anyone for whose acts Park District may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor.

10. Termination

In addition to the Park District's right to terminate in accordance with Section VIII.1 of the Scope of Services, the Park District may, at any time, terminate the Agreement in whole or in part for the Park District's convenience and without cause. Termination by the Park District under this section shall be by a notice of termination delivered to the Contractor specifying the extent of the termination and the effective date. Upon receipt of a notice of termination, the Contractor shall immediately, in accordance with instructions from the Park District: (1) cease operation as specified in the notice; (2) place no further orders; (3) enter into no further subcontracts for materials, labors, services or facilities except as necessary to complete continued portions of the Work; (4) terminate all subcontracts and orders to the extent they relate to the Work terminated; (5) proceed to complete the performance of Work not terminated; and, (6) take actions that may be necessary or that the Park District may direct, for the protection and preservation of the terminated Work. The Contractor shall recover payment for approved and properly performed Work completed prior to the effective date of termination and for proven, out-of-pocket costs with respect to materials and equipment ordered but not used by Contractor for the Work prior to receipt of the notice of termination. Contractor shall not be entitled to damages or lost profits resulting from termination for convenience under this Section.

11. Insurance

Contractor shall obtain and maintain the insurance of the types and in the amounts in accordance with Section 5 of the General Information.

12. Indemnification

Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Park District and its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents in accordance with Section 6 of the General Information.

13. Compliance with Laws and Permits

Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal codes, laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, including but not limited to those laws specified in the Instruction to Bidders and the General Information and Scope of Services. Contractor shall be licensed and bonded to perform the Work hereunder and shall, at its sole cost and obligation, be responsible for obtaining all permits required to perform its duties under this Agreement. Any breach by Contractor of the foregoing laws, regulations and rules shall constitute a breach by Contractor of this Agreement.

14. Choice of Law and Venue

This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Illinois. Any suit or action arising under this Agreement shall be commenced in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois, but only after exhausting all possible administrative remedies. In any suit or action arising under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of litigation. Contractor, its successors or assigns shall maintain no suit or action against the Park District on any claim based upon or arising out of this Agreement or out of anything done in connection with this Agreement unless such action shall be commenced within one year of the termination of this Agreement. Contractor acknowledges that each provision of this Agreement is important and material to the business and success of the Park District, and agrees that any breach of any provision of this Agreement is a material breach of the Agreement and may be cause for immediate termination of this Agreement. In the event of a breach, Contractor shall also pay to the Park District all damages (including, but not limited to, compensatory, incidental, consequential, and punitive), which arise from the breach, together with interest, costs, and the Park District's reasonable attorneys' fees.

15. No Third Party Beneficiary

This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of the contracting Parties, and nothing in this Agreement is intended, either expressly or impliedly, to provide any right or benefit of any kind whatsoever to any person and/or entity who is not a party to this Agreement or to acknowledge, establish or impose any legal duty to any third party. Nothing herein shall be construed as an express and/or implied waiver of any common law and/or statutory immunities and/or privileges of the Park District and/or Contractor, and/or any of their respective officials, officers and/or employees.

16. No Waiver

Waiver of any of the terms of this Agreement shall not be valid unless it is in writing and signed by all Parties. The failure of claimant to enforce the provisions of this Agreement or require performance by opponent of any of the provisions, shall not be construed as a waiver of such provisions or affect the right of claimant to thereafter enforce the provisions of this Agreement.

Waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall not be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach of the Agreement.

17. Independent Contractor

Contractor acknowledges that it is an independent contractor; that it alone retains control of the manner of conducting its activities in furtherance of this Agreement; that it, as well as any persons or agents as it may employ, are not employees of the Park District; and that neither this Agreement, nor the administration thereof, shall operate to render or deem either Party hereto the agent or employee of the other.

18. Non-Assignment

This Agreement is non-assignable in whole or in part by the Contractor, and any assignment shall be void without prior written consent of the Park District.

19. Entire Agreement; No Amendment

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties, and no statement, promise or inducement made by either Party to the agency of either Party that is not contained in this written Agreement shall be valid or binding. No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing dated a date subsequent to the date of this Agreement and signed by an authorized representative of each Party.

20. Headings

The headings for each paragraph of this Agreement are for convenience and reference purposes only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of said paragraphs or of this Agreement nor in any way affect this Agreement.

21. Severability

The invalidity of any section, paragraph or subparagraph of this Agreement shall not impair the validity of any other section, paragraph or subparagraph. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable and the Agreement may be enforced with such provision severed or as modified by such court.

IN WITNESS WHERE OF the Parties hereto have set their respective hands and seals the day and year first above written.

NORTHBROOK PARK DISTRICT	
Ву:	
Attest:	
By:	
VENDOR	
By:	
Attest:	
By:	